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ABOUT
FAUJI FOODS LIMITED
NURTURING THE FUTURE

At FFL, our priority Is to serve the nation with nourishing and quality products. The Company has
catered to the Pakistani market by providing high-quality and nutritious products that are used
by households across the country.

With best practices, every product delivered is manufactured with quality ingredients and goes
through stringent safety processes to fulfill the promise of providing nourishment to the nation.

Our range of products include a variety of dairy items that have become an integral part of every
household. Our much-loved butter is the highest selling in its category, throughout Pakistan.
Nurpur UHT Milk stands out prominently in its category while Nurpur Cheese has a good share
of its respective market. Providing nutrition with fun flavours, our flavoured milk is a staple
among young kids. Aiming towards growth by playing on our strengths, we continue to cater to
the nation's nutritional needs.

Looking into the future with our mission of Nurturing the Future, we are constantly looking for
ways to provide Pakistan with premium quality products that provide great taste, health and
happiness.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

uunlh-“ Chief Financial Officer
HI(M), Mr. Ebad Khalid

Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Aslam - CEO

:.mmm W"
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)

SIS B G- EY Ford Rhodes
:”"""'"m.:: Chartered Accountants
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti

Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer

Mr. Imran Husain




Legal Advisers
Qazi Imran Zahid
(Advocate Supreme Court)

Audit Committee

Mr. Javed Kureishi - Chalrman
Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Mr. All Asrar Hossain Aga

Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)

HR & R Commitiee

Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer - Chairperson
Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti

Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Astam

Mr. Al Asrar Hossain Aga

Registered Office

42 CCA, Ex-Park View,

DHA Phase - VIll, Lahore.

Tel: +92-42-37136310, 37136315-17

E-mail: info@faujifoods.com

Shares Registrar

M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited

Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial,

Mode! Town, Lahore.

Tel: +92-42-35916714, 35916719, 35839182
Fax: +92-42-35869037

E-mail: shares@corplink.com.pk

Habib Bank Limited
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National Bank of Pakistan

Bank Alfalah Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

MC8 Bank Limited
Askarl Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited

Bank AL Habib Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Soneri Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited
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Lt Gen Tariq Khan, Hi(M), (Retd)
Chairman

He is Chief Executive & Managing Director of Faujl
Fertlizer Compary Limited, FFC Energy Linmited,
Faujl Fresh n Freeze Limited and Chalrman of Sora
Weifare Fourdation He also hoids directorship on

the Boards of foliwng:

* Faup Fertitzer Bin Qasim Limitad
* Aghari Bark Limited

* Fauji Foods Limized

* Phillp Morris (Pakistan) Limited
* Fauj Meat Limited

* FFBL Foods Limited

* FFL Power Comparry Limited

* Pakistan Maroc Phosphore S A

The General was commissioned in Pakistan Arrrry In
Aprl 1977 with the covetad Sword of Homour,
During his Slustrious service in the Army, he had
beer amployed on various prestigious command,
staM and Instructional assignments nchuding
command of a Serike Corps. He s a graduate of
Command and Stafl College Quetta and National
Defence University islamabad. He also holds
Maszars Degree in War Studies. He has served on the
facuty of Command and Scaff College Quetta and
Nationsl Deferce Uriversity Islamabad, Since his
retirement, he & on the honorary facuky of
rencwned Institutions Including Nationsl Deferce
University as a senior mentor. The General
possasses vast axperience a3 an adviser to the
leading corporate enuties. He has been awarded
Hilal-e-imtiaz (Military) and Is also the first Pakistan
Arriry General who has been conferred upen the U S
“Laglon of Merit” by the US Government for his
MmerRorious services &S & Senior representative at
U.S CENTCOM in Tampa, Florida.
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He has broad channel expertise in key business
channels such as Retall (ley accounts, modem trade,

wnrd, In 2012, he took & sablatical fom Engro
Foods to establsh the Karach School for Business
wd Leadership. Sarfaraz rejoined Engro Foods m
CEO in 2013, where he remained til 2015. Engro

and university grackates. Sarfarax has coached for
Caream, Gatron-Novatex, Engro, ICI, Descon, PPL
UBL and Cay School.

Advertsers Councl 2015-18 (joir body controling
achvwrtising in Paiustan) Furthar, he wam the Chairman
of the | st Effie Awards in Paldstan, in 2019. He is also
on the Board of MAP and Patient Ald Foundation.

Additionally, Sarfaraz spesks & variows forums. He
has gven mothational talks at Lay's, Mondelex,
Nutrico, RS, Engre, Ocmara, ICI, Shell and MAP At
universities. collages, schools and on media cccasions
he holds chmate change talks / sessions to create
waaroeas

Sarfarax & deeply Interested In playing Ms part in
g back to socety and has workad on an onfine
Interactve ecucation model for mass education
rescive the issue of iliteracy in Pakistan over the naxt
decade. In the past he was associated with Shaulat
Khanum Hespital as & Governor of the Board wd
with WWF as a Director. He s also assocated with
Misaar Foundation and ks work on water/
environmental issues in Pakastan.
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Dr. Nadeem Inayat
Director

DOr. Nadeern bayat & an cutstanding professoral,
having nch experience in managng, operating and
advising investmant portfolio to top tier Banks and
organizaions of the Country at senior level.

Presercly he s holding the positon of Corporase
Advisor and Head of imestment Division in Fagi
Foundagion. Me & 3 member of FFBL Board of
Directors since July 2006, He is also a member of
Board of Directors of all subsiclartes and associated
comganies of Fau Foundation and Pakistan Maroc
Phosphore SA.

10

covered financial projections, feasibilities,
information memorandums, internal audit
assessments, HR assessments, manuals for
processes and controls, valuations, and

advisory which Included an assessment
of the Punjab and Sindh governments,

Mr. Balktiyar Kxared has sarved on & number of
diverse forums / boards In the Private Sector, Publc
Sector & Cwvi Socety Organzatan As a thinker, he
actively spreads his thoughts and Ideas through his
artides on national economics, business and tuation
matters and lssues, His thoughes are regularly
published in reputable dailies. Mr Kz is an avid
goller and currently hold the position of captain of
Islamabad golf dub.

Me. Malik is » Director on the Boards of Askart
General Insurance Company Limited. Fasgi Fresh n
Froszs Limited and Thar Energy Limited, and Chiel
Financal of FFC Energy Limited.

He joined FFC in 1990 and has served as Growp
General Manager — Marketing prior to his
appointment as CFO in 2015. During his career in
FFC, be has worked st various key positions in
Finance and Marketing Groups and has been actively
Ivolved in the strategic / financial planning of the
Company. He sso played an instrumentl role in
arangernent of syndicated debt for buyout of ex-Pak
Saudi Fervlizer Limited, now FFC Plam.-lIl,

Prier to joining FFC, he worked with Dowsll
Schiumberger (Western) S.A, an international oll
sarvics company sd Astock Cement Pakistan
Limited at Sendor firance positions.

He has undergone various professional trainings
from Harvard Busiress School, Standiord University.
Ohicago Booth School of Business, Kellogg School of
Busness, Foster School of Busness, Ross School of
Business and Canter for Creative Leadersiip, USA
and IMD, Switzerland. He s a fellow member of
Instieute of Chartered Accountants of Pakisten.



Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)
Director

Lt Col Abdul Khakg Khan (Retd) joined the company In
2000, working a8 executive director and became
member of the Baard on 30 May, 201 | . He also worked
for 9 years s Ploneer Cament as GM admnistration.

Abdul Khalq gradusted from Pakistan Miltary Academy
Kakyl and holds Mastors Dagrwe n Intermationsl
Relations. He was commissioned in Pakistan Army In
1975 wnd aftar serving for 25 years in Pakistan Arery at
various Command and Stalf appointmants he got retired
from the Armmy in 2000. During miltary service, he had &
vast and diversified experience In operstionsl,
sdministration, human resource masagermant,
assessment and evalLation Systems.

Abdul Khaliq has artended several courses, semminars.
Urining programs and workshops on various subjects

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Director

NIA Aga has over 38 years of mutt)- industry experience
i a wide ange of managemant postions v General
Management. Marketing, Muman Resource
Management, Corporate Affairs. Operations and Supply
Chain Managemam n ICI Pakatan a well as German
company Hoechstand other matioral Companies.

e I8 currently the Maraging partner Middle Exst - South
Asia & Chisl Exncutive Pakistan for Ward Howell
Iarnational, & gobal Lasdership & Macagument
conmiting compary. Prior to his involvement with Waerd
Howell in 2014, he wies working with Puliste's leading
company 1] whare he worked for almest 25 years in
various serior positions. He was apponted the Chief
Executive of IC| Pakistan & Chairman of IC] Pakistan
Power Gan Limited during the transition period of IC
Paksstan's ownership from Ao Nobel Netherfands to
the YB Group in Pakistan in 2013, He abo held the
postion of 2 Director on the Board of IC) Pakestan and
worked as Vice Presiders & Director of ICI's
fagship Soda Ash Business from 2008 to 2014, He has
also verved 2 Gereral Marager Human Rescurce for
the IC] Grosp in Pakistan from 2004 to 2008 and locked
after MR for the IC! growp in Pakistan and Middie East,
and was aiso resporible for wadership development
programs for the Ragional & industrisl Bustness of 1O pic
globaly.

Al Ags haa xiso sarved 45 & Directar on the Boards of
Paldstn PTA Letd, Also Nobel Paldstan Limited, 1O
Power Gen Lid, and Paldstan Society for Thaining &
Development. He & & Cortied Director and Accredited
Trainer on Corporate Governance by IFC and Pakistas
Inseune of Corporate Governance (PICG), and a visiting
Faculty for PICG s Director’s training program.

He s an Independent Director and Chalrran of the
Audit Committee and member of HR & Remuneration
Cammittee of the Board of Descon Oxychem Ltd., and
has verved as Independent Director on the Boards of

Water Tramsport Company of Pakistan and Engineening
Developmaent Board He & also involved in volunteer
work i the field of management development and has
served 3 the Vice Chairman of the Lahare Chapter of
Managemant Assocition of Pekisan and & Councll
mamber of the Lshers Chapter of Marketing
Association of Pakisan,

Ni Aga holds an MBA degres froen Dresel University
USA and a 8Sc (Engg ) in Chamical Enginearing from
University of the Punjab. He has artended the Advanced
Management Program at Harvard Business School and
has been a guest speaker m variows local and
Incernatonal conferences and seminars.
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Member Executive Committee Pakistan Sugar
Mills Association - (| 987 - 1989),

Mr. Javed Kureishi
Director

Javed s a seasomed, imternational banker having
spent 34 years with Ceibank. He has held a number
of senior, leadership roles across corporate banking,
country managemenst, risk and public sector
coverage. He worked for Ceibank n 6 different
locations inchuding Pakistan, Egypt, South Alrica,
Czach Republic, UAE and Singapore where he spent
the lnst 9 years before returning to Pakdssan in Oct
2019. His last assignment was Head of Public Sector
Serior Coverage Group for Asia Paciic covering |4
coumries. Javed has travelled extensively across the
Asta Pacific and has a good working knowledgn of the
region.

Jwved is presently working for the IFC as an exernad
comsultant resporsble for Serior client coverage and
business arigination. Ha is also on 3 other company
boards induding the Pakstan Stock Exchange.

Javed has also been a keen cricketer. He captained
Pakistan Under 19 in 1978-79 on its tour of Scf Lanka
and India. He also played first class Cricker for PIA,
nd Sincdh and represented Sussex under 25 and
combined Erglish Universities.

He has a BA Hons from Sussex University UK and s
married with 2 chidren.
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Ebad Khalid started his carrier with Price
Wierhouse Coopars and & an sssociate member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Paldstan.
He has 2 collective experience of || years n
wholesale & recall Industry where he & well

delvering results. He played a major rolle n mergers
and has hands-on experiencs of migrating systars.

He is always ready to wplore more and challengs
the status-quo. An adventure secker, he loves

travelling on lang routes.

Brig. Hamid Mahmood Dar, SI(M), (Retd)

Company Secretary

Brg Hamid Mahmood Dar, SI(M). (Retd) is the

Company Secretary st Faujl Foods Limised (FFL)
since 14 jan 2021.

He is a graduate of Cormand and Stafl College,

degree in war studies. Brig Hamid has varied
command and safl experionce that includes
command of a unit dlong the LOC, command of a
beigade In Wagiristan, Ol of Stalf of & Corps,
member of faculty In National Defence University,
Islarmabad and Chairman Border Area Committes.
Besides serving in the UN, he has also represented
Pk In Interactive tours and condersnces In the US,
Briain, France, Japan, Malwysa, Kazakhstan and
UAE. Before joining FFL, he has worked in real
estate, education and COrpOrate SeCLors.

His amicable persoralty, professional acumen,
communication skills and commitment malke him a
valuable member of the team. FFL is pleased to have
him on board and hopes to achieve more success

Cogetar
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Fauji Foods Limited

(FFL), | am pleased to present the Annual Report of the
Company for the calendar year 2020.

The year 2020 brought unprecedented challenges in the form
of Covid-|9 pandemic. The sudden nature of lockdown and
restraints affected the economy overall. In this situation, Fauji
Foods ensured that its food supply chain and vital product
supply to customers and consumers continued. In addition, we
ensured that right health and safety precautions were in place
throughout our operations,

2020 saw 2 step-change in strengthening of our leadership at
FFL. In addition, capability and expertise building at various
levels of the Company took place. This capability building, with
right people at the right place Is at the heart of our
transformation and a key enabler of our fast-improving
achlevements.

Our growth momentum has been strong during 2020, being achieved through a multi-pronged strategy; the key strands
include innovation and renovation, customers and distribution, operational efficiency and liquidity. The significant shift of
results as compared to last year is reflected by growth in net revenue, positive gross profit and improved working capital
with a mindset to generate positive cash inflows from business operations going forward.

One for all and all for one. Together, the teams on all tiers worked round the dock and continued to deliver remarkable
results, This leads me to be deeply grateful for their dedication and commitment, especially amidst difficult and uncertain
drcumstances.

| would also like to extend my acknowledgment and gratefulness towards the Board for their positive contribution and
continuous commitment. The Board has played its role in providing effective guidance ensuring that FFL maintains its

transparent path and strong reputation for corporate governance. | take this opportunity to also express my appreciation
and gratitude towards our shareholders,

We now have a strong platform from where we can enter positively into the year 2021 ; with the right focus and capabilicy
consolidating the gains and further grow our business momentum and trajectory. Here we are, committed to create value
and transform for improvement within the Company as well as for our stakeholders, | look forward to reporting on our
progressin 2021.
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CEO’S REVIEW

Business Review

During the year 2020, business activity was impacted with the
breakout of Covid-19 pandemic and related lockdowns.
Howaever, the Company made effective efforts to ensure all
safety measures, while maintaining our food supply chain and
meeting our customer and consumer demand. Despite a
challenging business environment, the Company registered a
topline growth of 28% for the year 2020,

The Company is successfully steering its path to growth and
margin recovery, based on fundamental iImprovements in our
business model. Key elements of our strategy include
strengthening of our Innovation/renovation program,
leveraging our iconic “NURPUR" brand and its portfolio and
our tea creaming brand “DOSTEA', driving numeric
distribution and increasing presence with important
customars such as key retail accounts and out-of-home

customers. Moreover, our strategy Includes 2 big focus on Improving cost efficlency across our value chain.

Benchmarking, target setting and implementation of cost management initiatives are enabling improvement in variable as
well as fixed costs.

Financial Performance

The Company posted a gross profit of 0.849% in 2020, against a gross loss of (| | 8296) during 2019. Below is a summary of
the financial performance during 2020 (compared with 2019) which shows positive growth and recovery for the

Company:
Particulars 2020 PKR Millions 2019 PKR Millions
Net sales 73713 5,745
Gross profit/(loss) 62 (679)
Operating profit/(loss) (1,147) (2434)
Profit/(Joss) after tax (3.058) (5.789)

These positive changes are attributable to product and channel mix Improvement, cost optimization and strengthening of
distribution network. Raw milk cost however, still remained somewhat challenging; however a strategy s In place to
strengthen our milk collection going forward.



Growth is being driven through a focused multi-pronged strategy

Innovation/renovation: Exciting new launches included new and improved "NURPUR" Cheese and "NURPUR"
Unsalted Butter and all-time favorite "NURPUR™ Butter In 2 new tub as well. “Try, Taste, Love”, our consumer call to
action for Nurpur Cheese came to ife on digital platforms, at point of sale and at other relevant consumers touch-points.
Further exciting "NURPUR" innovations are on their way.

Customers and distribution: Sales/distribution expansion with focus on numeric and weighted distribution is being
driven along with the right sales and channel capabilities. Moreover, key accounts and out-of-home channels are being
developed. For example, the Company has entered into strategic supply agreements with renowned international foods
chains; these customer collaborations will help to increase our sales as well as enhance brand image.

Operational efficiency: Cost management initiatives are being implemented across our value chain. An efficiency
oriented lean management approach and mind-set is being strengthened. The Company has already started reaping
benefits in key areas such as production and supply chain. Moreover, this mind-set is enabling gradual optimization of fixed
costs across the Company.

Liquidity: The Company is on the path of recovery from operating losses, as evident from our results. To strengthen
short and long term cash flows, the Company took an important step through restructuring and re-profiling debt through
the support of its banks.

To achieve sustainable sector growth, the Company actively and continuously works with the Pakistan Dairy Association
and the relevant authoritles.

The management team remains committed and resilient to respond to the challenges in the market (with Increasing
capabilities and renewed vigor), and to bring operational efficiency and make our business sustainable and profitable. The
management is also grateful to all its employees for their commitment and valuable efforts, We are also thankful to
valuable stakeholders and shareholders for their trust and continued support to the Company.

Mo,

Muhammad Haseeb Aslam
Chief Executive Officer
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k.

Notice is hereby given that the 54° Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Fauji Foods Limited will be held on

Thursday, March 25, 2021 at | 1:00 A M. at Royal Swiss Hotel, Opposite Cargo Complex, Allama Igbal International
Airport, Lahore to transact the following business: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
I. To confirm the minutes of 53 Annual General Meeting held on April 02, 2020.

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.

3. Toappoint auditors for ensuing period till next AGM and to fix their remuneration.

OTHER BUSINESS
4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.
CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS:

Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from March |9, 2021 to March 25, 202 | (both days inclusive)
for the purpose of holding the Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Lahore. Brig Hamid Mahmood Dar (Retd)
January 25, 2021 Company Secretary
NOTES:-
|. Participation in the AGM Proceedings:

In the light of COVID- 19 situation, the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its circular # 4 of
2021 dated February |5, 2021 has permitted all listed companies to hold its General Meetings virtually via electronic
means, video-link, webinar, zooming etc. as a regular feature from the date of this circular till further orders in

addition to requirement of holding physical meeting. Apropos, video-link for participation virtually in the AGM shall
be made available on Company's website | e., www.faujifoods.com,

2. Please obsarve COVID-19 SOPsin case of physical participation,

3. Any member of the Company entitied to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint a
person/represantative as proxy to attend and vote in place of member at the meeting. Proxdes in order to be
effective must be received at Company's registered office duly stamped and signed not later than 48 hours before
the time of holding meeting. A member cannot appoint more than one proxy. Attested copy of shareholder's CNIC
must be attached with the proxy form,

4. The CDC/sub account holders are required to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:-

(a) Forattending the meeting
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L In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall authenticate his/her identity by
showing his / her original national Identity card or original passport at the time of attending the meeting,

I In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature
of the nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting.

(b) For appointng proxes

L In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall submit the proxy form as per the
above requiremaent.

. The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall
be mentioned on the form.

iii, Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form.

iv. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

v. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted to the Company along with praxy form.

5. Members, having physical shares, are advised to iIntimate any change In their registered address and the shareholders
who have not yet submitted photocopies of their Computerized National ldentity Cards (CNIC) are requested to
send the same at the earfiest.

6. Shareholders who wish to receive annual reports and notice of the General Meeting through e-mail are requested to
provide, through a lettar duly signed by them, their particulars, i.e. Name, Folio/ CDC A/C No., E-mail Address,
Contact Number, CNIC Number (attach copy). Shareholders are also requested to notify immediately any change
in their o-mail address to the Share Registrar of the Company |.e., M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, |-K,
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore.

Consent for Video Conference Facility

Members can also avail video conference facility in Karachi and Islamabad. In this regard please fill the following and
submit to registerred address of the Company |0 days before holding the general meeting.

If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 109% or more shareholding residing at
geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of
meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to avadability of such facility in that city.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of
general meeting alongwith complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

1/We, , being a member of Fauji
Foods Limited, holder of mm)-wm&ulmcmm
hereby opt for video conference facility at
Sigrature of member
7. E-Voting

Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section |43 - 145 of Companies
Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Faujl Foods limited, we are pleased to present the Director’s Report along with the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Principal Activities

Fauji Foods Limited, a majority owned Company of Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (67.509 shareholding) and Fauji
Foundation (8.399% shareholding) is engaged in processing and marketing of dairy products, juices and jams. The
Company's brand including highly recognized NURPUR and DOSTEA brands. NURPUR is one of the leading dairy brands
in Pakistan with a fast growing range and portfolio. DOSTEA is amongst the leading liquid tea creamer brands in the

country.
Overview

Company achieved a strong 28% growth in net sales, reaching annual net sales of PKR 7.4 billion compared with PKR 5.7
billion in2019.

Growth momentum bullt up strongly during H2 and trajectory shows a very encouraging trend. In H2, Company
achieved PKR 4.2 billion net sales compared with PKR 3.2 billion in H|. This trajectory provides a good foundation to
build upan,

Company is now also building a good trajectory on contribution margin which is anabling a fundamental positive shift in
improving the gross profit trend. A gross profit of PKR 172 million in H2 2020 compared with a gross loss of PKR (109)
million in H | 2020 and a gross loss of PKR (678.83) million in 2019 shows how the P&L structure is positively shifting with

improvement and reshaping of our business model.

Moreover, it is satisfactory to note that the above growth momentum has been achieved despite the extraordinary
business challenges and lockdowns caused by the covid pandemic.

Growth, and profit recovery trend, are being achleved through fundamental business model improvements. These
Improvements are enabled by a culture of consumer and customer centricity, value chain improvements that are driving

effectiveness and operational efficlency across the company, and a focused and key bulldup of capabilivies in the
leadership team and across functions at various levels of the company.

Building lconic Brands Through Innovation/Renovation

Key elements of our strategy include strengthening of our innovation/renovation program, leveraging our iconic
NURPUR brand and its portfolio and our tea creaming brand DOSTEA.

More exciting launches are on their way. Consumer g
testing of our innovation pipeline (products, concepts) is
showing promising opportunities.




NURPUR consumers love their favorite brand, To bring
exciting news regarding our innovations, "Try, Taste,
Love™ and “Butter you love" for cheese and butter
respectively (our consumer call for action) has been
activated on digital platforms, at point of sale and at other

relevant consumers touch-points.

Driving numeric distribution in general trade, and
Increasing presence with important customers such as
key retail accounts and key out-of-home customaers, is an

Improving Operational Efficiency in Supply chain and Production
Our strategy Includes a big focus on improving cost efficlency across our value chain.

Benchmarking, target setting and implementation of cost management initiatives is enabling significant improvement in
variable as well as foced costs.

Strengthening Milk Collaction, Agri Services And Key Raw Materials Procurement Expertise

Development of capabilities and supplier/farmer development initiatives are enabling strengthening of sustainable and
efficient supply of milk and other key materials.

Purpose Lad Sustainable Development

Our business and refated value chain plays an important role in nutrition and health and helps to improve lives through
community engagement and development, This includes providing healthy nutritious brands and products, ensuring food
supply chain (especially during covid), and the important role of our milk collection and agri services teams where we buy
milk from a large number of farmers and help farmers communities to improve productivity and yleld thus impacting lives
positively

Working Capital Efficiency And Improving Financial Management

Improvement in cash conversion cydie is brought through efficient working capital management. This has further been
supported by reduction of debt servicing expense achieved through restructuring of overall financial debt under a
syndicate finance arrangement.

Financial Performance:

The Company returned to posting a gross profit of PKR 62.26 million in 2020 compared with a gross loss of PKR (678.83)
million in 2019. These positive changes are attributable to innovation/renovation, product and channel mix
improvement, pricing, cost optimization and efficient expansion in sales/distribution, Raw milk cost however, remained
somewhat challenging however our strategy to strengthen our milk collection is already starting to provide benefits. The
loss after tax for the year 2020 has reduced by 47. 1 796 and stood at PKR (3,058.1 1) million compared to PKR (5,788.94)
Inyear2019.
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PKR million 2020 2019 e ““‘n‘ ease)
Net sales 7.373.16 5.744.87 28.34%
Gross profit / (loss) 62.26 (678.83) 109.17%
(loss) before tax (3,043.80) (4.253.03) (28.43)%
(Joss) after tax (3,058.11) (5,788.94) (47.17)%
Financial Graphs
Revenue Million EBITDA Million
000 TGS | | 400 =3
o -
GP/(GL) Million Loss After Tax Million
— B || [ o

Increase in Authorized Capital and Conversion of Sponsor Loan to Share Capital

In the Annual General Meeting heid on April 02 2020, Shareholders have approved, through a special resolution, an
increase in Authorized Capital to 1,000 million Shares of Rs. 10 /- each from 700 million Shares of Rs. 10 /- each. Further
approved is the conversion of FFBL subordinated loan to equity amounting to PKR 2,748 million (including PKR 2,630
milion principal and markup of PKR | 18.86 million outstanding as at December 3| 2019) at par value of Rs. 10/- per
share. The process of conversion and issuance of shares has strengthened the Company equity.

Restructuring of Bank Debts and Additional Sponsor Support

The company achieved a financial close of the restructuring transaction involving overall financial debe of PKR 8,068
milion under a syndicate finance arrangement. The transaction has provided Bquidity relief through extension in the debt
servicing period by five years, along with a markup and principal re-payment grace period of | & 2.5 years respectively.

Further the sponsor (FFBL) approved a support loan of PKR 6,000 million during the year that also helped in improving
the working capital of company.

Covid And Related Measures

Challenges related to the second wave of COVID are being thoroughly menitored and proactive precautions and
mitigation measures are in place. To ensure health and safety, mandatory covid related SOPs for employees and service
providers are ensured, including face masks and maintenance of prescribed social distance at all times. Moreover, all
efforts are being made to ensure supply to trade and consumers continues smoothly.

Future outlook

The Company is on the path of recovery from operating losses, as evident from the results for the year 2020, Growth and
operational efficiency are being driven through focused multipronged strategy.
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Innovation/renovation
Exciting “NURPUR" innovations are planned for the future.
Customers’ and distribution

Sales/distribution expansion with focus on numeric and weighted distribution is being driven along with the right sales and
channel capabilities. Moreover, key accounts and out-af-home channels are being developed. For example, the Company
has entered into strategic supply agreements with renowned international foods chains; these customer collaborations
will hedp to increase our sales and enhance brand image.

Operational efficiency

Cost management initiatives are being implemented across our value chain. An efficiency orlented lean management
approach and mind-set is being strengthened. The Company has already started reaping benefits in key areas such as
production and supply chain. Moreover, this mind-set is enabling gradual optimization of fixed costs across the Company.

Sustainable development for Dairy industry

To achieve sustainable sector growth, it is of immense importance that future GOP revenue and monetary policies are
consistent and supportive to this important sector. Company is engaged with multiple relevant and important
stakeholders through Pakistan Dairy Association (PDA) emphasizing the importance of packaged milk and related
products for providing healthy and hygienic products to the nation.

However, management foresees 3 mixed macroeconomic and business environment with inflationary challenges,
pressure on consumer purchasing power, and second wave of covid. The management team remains committed and
resilient to respond to the challenges in the market by Increasing capabilities and by bringing further operational efficiency
to make our business sustainable and profitable.

Principle Risks And Uncertainties Facing Company

Risks faced by the Company are not significantly different from risks posed to other companies working in the dairy
sector. Risks are reviewad by the managemant through a robust business and risk management process. Appropriate
strategies and contingency plans are regularly reviewed to minimize potential risk impacts. There are no significant risk
and uncertainties posed to the business and operations of the Company, except as disciosed in the Contingencies and
Commitment notes to the financial statements.

Transaction with related parties
The Company carries out transactions with refated parties and amounts, due from and to, related parties as shown under

respective heads are carried out at arms’ length, Except as disclosed in financial statements, no other transactions were
executed with related parties.

Corporate and financial reporting framework:

- The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of
its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

- Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

- Appropriate accounting policies have been consistenty applied in preparation of the financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment except for those as disclosed in the financial

‘ A
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- International financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of the financial
statements.

- Thesystem of intarnal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
« Thereare nosignificant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a 'going concern'.

< Thera are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as on
December 3 |, 2020 except for those disclosed in the financial statements,

= The value of investments of staff provident fund, based on un-audited accounts, was Rs. 168, | 6 million as at December
31,2020.

- The Board has approved the remuneration policy of non-executive directors including independent directors,

- The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding Is included in this annual
report.

Shares held by: Ne. of Sharss held  Percentage

L. Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties:

I. Committee of Admin. Faull Foundation 67371916 8.3870
2. Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 542,201,257 67.4973

H.  Mutual Funds:

I. CDC - Trustee AKD Opportunity Fund 2,470,000 0.3075
2. CDC - Trustee Alfalah GHP Alpha Fund 2,000 0.0002
3. CDC - Trustee First Capital Mutual Fund 35,000 0.0044
4. CDC - Trustee Lakson Equity Fund 1,403,000 0.1747
5. CDC - Trustee Lakson Tactical Fund 156,500 0.0194

Hl. Directors, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Children:

V. Executives:

I. Lt Gen Tariq Khan (Retd) | 0.0000
2.  Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Aslam | 0.0000
3. Mr Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman 4 0.0000
4. Dr. Nadeem Inayat 16 0.0000
5. Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd) 48 0.0000
6. Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi | 0.0000
7. Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti | 0.0000
8. Ms, Aminah Zahid Zaheor | 0.0000
9. Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga 40,000 0.0050
10. Mr. Mohammad Munir Malik | 0.0000
11, Mr. Imran Husain | 0.0000
12. Mr. Javed Kureishi | 0.0000

V.  Public Sector Companies & Corporations:

k.




No. of Shares held  Percentage

VL. Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance Companiles,
Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds: 1,350 572 0.168)

Vil. Sharcholders holding five percent or more voting interest in the listed company:

I.  Committee of Admin. Fauji Foundation 67371916 8.3870

2. Faujl Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

542,201,257 674973

No trading in the shares of the Company carried-out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and
their spouse and minor children during the year ended December 31, 2020,

Board of Directors / Committees meetings during the year 2020:
Five meeting of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors No. of Mesting(s) Attended
Lt Gen Syed Tariq Nadeem Gilani (Retd) - resigned w.e.f March 20, 2020 |
Lt Gen javed Igbal (Retd) - resigned w.e.f June |0, 2020 2
Lt Gen Tariq Khan (Retd) - elected on November 26, 2018 5
Dr. Nadeem Inayat - re-elected on November 26, 2018 4
Mr. Rehan Laiq - resigned w.e.f September 07, 2020 3
Syed Iqtidar Saced - resigned w.a.f April 23, 2020 2
Mr. Muhammad Ali Gulfaraz - resigned w.a.f May 18, 2020 2
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd) - re-elected on November 26, 2018 5
Mr. lieifat Rasul Khan - resigned w.e.l january 31, 2020 I
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti - elected on November 26, 2018 5
Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer - slected on November 26, 2018 4
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga - appointed on April 21, 2020 2
Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Aslam - appointed on April 06, 2020 4
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman - appointed on june 10, 2020 3
Mr. Khurram Shahzad Khan - resigned w.e.f August 03, 2020 I
Mr. Imran Husain - appointed on june 25, 2020 3
Mr. Javed Kureishi - appointed on June 25, 2020 3
Mr. Mohammad Munir Malik - appointed on August 03, 2020 2
Mr. Imran Moid - resigned w.e.f November |6, 2020 I
Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi - appointed on November 25, 2020 0

Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors

) Attended

]

Mr. Javed Kureishi

Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga

Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)
Mr. litifat Rasul Khan

Mr. Rehan Laiq

N W W

|
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Nine meetings of the HR&R Committee were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors No. of Meeting (s) Attended

Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer
Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Aslam
Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga

Syed Iqtidar Saeed
Mr. Rehan Laiq

NNNYNOOANNYN®D

Two meetings of the Technical Committee were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors No. of Meeting Attended
Syed Iqtidar Sased 2
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd) 2
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti 2

Two meetings of the Business Review Committee were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors N..dlhﬁ‘w

Mr. Muhammad All Guifaraz
Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Mr. Re han Laiq

Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer

Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti

NN NOoWN

The audit committee reviewed consent of retiring auditors EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants being eligible for re-
appointment to provide Independent external audit services to the Company. The Audit Committee has recommended
the appointment of retiring auditors EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the Company for
the ensuing year. The Board has endorsed the recommendation.

Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance:

The requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) regulations 2019, relevant for the year
ended December 3 |, 2020 have been duly complied with. A statament to this effect is annexed with the report.

FFL follows a policy framework conducive to more environmentally friendly practices and proper waste management
practices have been adopted for solid and liquid waste, air emission, soil pollution and noise,

Company's objective towards corporate social responsibility is to prioritize social good alongside the traditional
corporate goal of generating profits,

Directors are under fiduciary responsibility to operate business under a system of governance and controls, which
reinforces stakeholders trust and confidence in the Company.
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The remuneration to the Non-executive Directors (including independent Directors) is paid according to the
remuneration policy approved by the Board.

The Board has not recommended any dividend due to loss to the Company during the year.

Annual General Meeting:

The 54" Annual General Meeting will be held on March 25, 2021 at | 100 hours at Lahore to approve anmual financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Acknowledgement:

The Board s thankful to the valuable shareholders and financlal institutions for their trust and continued support to the

Company. The Board would also like to place on record its appreciation to all employees of the Company for thelr
dedication, diligence and hard work.

For and on behalf of the Board

Lt Gen Tariq Khan Muhammad Haseeb Aslam
HI(M). (Retd) Chief Executive Officer
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(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: Fawji Foods Limited
Year ended: December 31,2020

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
I. Thetotal number of directors are | 2 as per the following:

a. Male I
b. Female: ol

2. Thecompesition of Board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Javed Kureishl
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti
Ms . Aminah Zahid Zaheer
Mr. Imran Husain

Executive Director Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Aslam

Non-Executive Directors Lt Gen Tariq Khan (Retd)
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Dr. Nadeem Inayat
Syed Bakhaiyar Kazmi
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd)
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Mr. Mohammad Munir Malik

Female Director Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer

. The directors have confirmed that none of them s serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,

inchuding this Company.

. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to

disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the

Company. The Board has ensured a complete record of particulars of significant policies along with their date of
approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the

Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, In his absence, by a director elected by the

Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect
to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in

accordance with the Act and these Regulations which has been approved by BOD.
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9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:
Lt Gen Tarlq Khan (Retd) (Director/ Chairman)
Dr. Nadeem Inayat (Director)
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd) (Director)
Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer (Director)
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti (Director)
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman (Director)
Mr. Imran Husain (Director)
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (Director)

10, During the year, Company Secretary and Chiefl Financial Officer have resigned from their positions, the vacant
positions shall be filled in by the Board in due course. There is no change in the Head of Internal Audit.

I 1. CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Javed Kureishi (Chairman)
Dr. Nadeem inayat (Member)

Mr. All Asrar Hossain Aga (Member)

Lt Col Abdul Khallq Khan (Retd) (Member)

Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer (Chairperson)
Dr. Nadeem Inayat (Member)
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti (Member)
Mr. All Asrar Hossain Aga (Member)
Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Astam (Member)
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

Syed Iqtidar Saeed (Chairman)
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Reed) (Member)
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti (Member)

Mr. Muhammad Ali Gulfaraz (Chairman)
Dr. Nadeem Inayat (Member)
Mr. Rehan Laiq (Member)
Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer (Member)
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti (Member)
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13,

14,

Whereas, Technical Committee and Business Review Committee were dissolved by the Board with effect from
June 25, 2020,

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee and Human Resource Committee have been formed,
documented and advised to the Committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

No. Frequency
a) Audit Committee: 05 Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 09 Quarterly
€) Technical Committee: 02 Quarterly
02 Quarterly

d) Business Review Committee:

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function staffed with persons who are suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are well conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
Quulity Control Review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and
all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm
involved in the audit are not a close refative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

Wa confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7,8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Ragulations have been complied
with,

We confirm that all other requiremaents of the Regulations have been complied with.

%gq/‘!‘/’" Mo,

Lt Gen Tariq Khan Muhammad Haseeb Aslam
Hi (M), (Retd) Chief Executive Officer
Chairman

Dated: january 25, 2021
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FORM 34 Q
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 w foods
(Section 227(2)(N)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1.1 Name of the Company FAUJI FOODS LIMITED
2.1 Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 31-12-2020
No. of Shareholdings Total
Shareholders From | To Shares Held
861 I 100 42,827
1361 101 500 622,517
1621 501 1,000 1,581,591
3558 1,001 5,000 10,725,563
1333 5,001 10,000 11,030,624
4n 10,001 15,000 6,148,075
327 15,001 20,000 6,205,266
243 20,001 25,000 5,719,785
147 25,001 30,000 4,217,996
8 30,001 35,000 2,775,992
8 35,001 40,000 3,136,831
54 40,001 45,000 2,344,348
18 45,001 50,000 5,859,216
34 50,001 55,000 1,812,933
k) 55,001 60,000 1,890,724
25 60,001 65,000 1,597,748
24 65,001 70,000 1,646,503
31 70,001 75,000 2,301,400
27 75,001 80,000 2,124,075
9 80,001 85,000 759,000
20 85,001 90,000 1,778,042
4 90,001 95,000 376,500
7 95,001 100,000 7,293,500
12 100,001 105,000 1,231,650
9 105,001 110,000 986,500
3 110,001 115,000 339,500
. 115,001 120,000 705,168
7 120,001 125,000 869,500
4 125,001 130,000 517,500
3 130,001 135,000 1,199,000
10 135,001 140,000 1,390,500
2 140,001 145,000 286,500
20 145,001 150,000 2,990,918
3 150,001 155,000 459,740
4 155,001 160,000 632,000
| 160,001 165,000 164,500
6 165,001 170,000 1,018,500




No. of !uioiii' Total
Shareholders From To Shares Held
2 170,001 175,000 350,000
2 175,001 180,000 360,000
| 180,001 185,000 185,000
3 185,001 190,000 568,000
3 190,001 195,000 577,572
21 195,001 200,000 4,198,800
4 200,001 205,000 813,500
6 205,001 210,000 1,252,500
I 210,001 215,000 215,000
[3 215,001 220,000 1,317,500
| 220,001 225,000 220,500
| 225,001 230,000 226,000
3 235,001 240,000 719,000
2 240,001 245,000 488,000
5 245,001 250,000 1,250,000
2 250,001 255,000 503,500
| 255,001 260,000 260,000
2 260,001 265,000 530,000
2 265,001 270,000 537,056
2 270,001 275,000 550,000
I 275,001 280,000 280,000
5 295,001 300,000 1,498,500
3 305,001 310,000 923,500
2 310,001 315,000 625,500
| 315,001 320,000 317,500
I 320,001 325,000 321,500
| 335,001 340,000 338,000
I 340,001 345,000 345,000
3 345,001 350,000 1,050,000
I 355,001 360,000 356,500
| 380,001 385,000 383,000
6 395,001 400,000 2,400,000
I 400,001 405,000 400,500
I 405,001 410,000 410,000
| 415,001 420,000 417,000
| 425,001 430,000 430,000
| 440,001 445,000 444,000
I 455,001 460,000 458,684
| 465,001 470,000 468,000
I 470,001 475,000 475,000
5 495,001 500,000 2,500,000
2 515,001 520,000 1,039,000




fauji foods
No. of m Total

Shareholders From To Shares Held
| 535,001 540,000 540,000
2 545,001 550,000 1,100,000
| 570,001 575,000 575,000
I 580,001 585,000 585,000
I 595,001 600,000 600,000
I 605,001 610,000 608,500
| 610,001 615,000 610,666
I 620,001 625,000 621,000
I 625,001 630,000 628,500
I 645,001 650,000 650,000
| 730,001 735,000 733,000
I 745,001 750,000 750,000
I 765,001 770,000 769,500
I 790,001 795,000 795,000
2 795,001 800,000 1,600,000
I 880,001 885,000 884,000
I 900,001 905,000 902,400
I 925,001 930,000 925,500
| 935,001 940,000 936,000
I 985,001 990,000 990,000
I 995,001 1,000,000 1,000,000
I 1,010,001 1,015,000 1,011,500
I 1,225,001 1,230,000 1,227,000
I 1,355,001 1,360,000 1,356,500
I 1,400,001 1,405,000 1,403,000
I 1,575,001 1,580,000 1,575,180
I 2,195,001 2,200,000 2,200,000
I 2,445,001 2,450,000 2,450,000
I 2,455,001 2,460,000 2,459,000
I 2,465,001 2,470,000 2,470,000
I 2,750,001 2,755,000 2,751,000
I 2,925,001 2,930,000 2,926,000
I 3,020,001 3,025,000 3,023,500
I 6,875,001 6,880,000 6,880,000
I 19,400,001/ 19,405,000 19,401,000
I 67,370,001 67,375,000 67,371,916
I 267,310,001 267,315,000 267,311,886
I 274,885,001 274,890,000 274,886,371
10785 803,293,563
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2.3 Categories of shareholders

23.1

232

233

235

236

237

238

Directors, Chief Executive Officers,
and their spouse and minor children

undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)

NIT and ICP

Others (to be specified)

|- Joint Stock Companies
2- Foreign Companies
3- Other Companies

3. Signature of Company Secretary

4. Name of Signatory

Share held Percentage
40,076 0.0050%
609,573,173 75.8842%
8,300 0.0010%
936,000 0.1165%
42,072 0.0052%
4,439,000 0.5526%
542,201,257 67.4973%
163,455,580 20.3482%
923,900 0.1150%
22,688,091 2.8244%
100,000 0.0124%
1,087,371 0.1354%
Brig Hamid Mahmood Dar (Retd)
Company Secretary
35201-7127628-)
December 31, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT fqyi foods

TO THE MEMBERS OF FAUJI FOODS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance
Contained in Listed

Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Fauji Foods (the Company) for
the year ended 3 | December, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with
the provisions of the Regulations and report If it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of
the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on intemal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controtls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are

only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the refated party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in
the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 3 | December, 2020.

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Lahore: February 18, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of Fauji Foods Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Fauji Foods Limited (the Company), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, indluding a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafrer referred to as the "financial statements’) and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our iInformation and according to the explanations given to us, the staterment of financial
position, statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statament of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 201 7 (XIX of 2017), in the
manner 5o required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 3| December
2020 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as appilicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)and we have fulfliled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffident and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Kay audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

I. Going concern

As disclosed in note |.2 to the financial statements, the
Company has suffered a loss of Rs, 3,058 million, for
the year ended 3| December 2020 (2019: Rs. 5,789
milion) and its accumulated loss as at the reporting
date amounts to Rs. 15,188 million (2019: Rs. 12,197
million), resulting in a negative equity of Rs. 3,989
million (2019: Rs. 3,678 million). The current labilities
of the Company also exceeded its current assets by Rs.
5,184 million (2019: Rs. 8,789 million).

The management of the Company made their
assassment of going concern by preparing a cash flow
forecast in which some key assumptions were applied.

We performed following key audit procedures, among
other procedures, in respect of going concern:

= Reviewed the going concern assessment
approved by the Board of Directors particularly
with respect to key assumptions used in the future
financial projections.

- Assessed the reasonableness of the inputs and
assumptions used in the cash flow forecast against
historical performance, economic and industry
indicators, publicly available information and the
Company’s strategic plans,
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Following key assumptions have been used as basis to
determine the respective value in use:

= Sales growth rate;
- Operating margin; and
- Long-term market growth-rate

A significant degree of management judgement is
involved in making this assessment and in forecasting
the future cash flows of the Company which are

inherently uncertain,

Significant auditor attention was required in reviewing

the management’s assessment of going concern and
hence considered a Key Audit Matter.

2. Initial audit

This is our first year of audit of the Company. Initial
audit engagements involve a number of considerations
not associated with recurring audits, Additional
planning activities and considerations necessary to
establish an appropriate audit strategy and audit plan
inchude:

- Gaining an initial understanding of the Company
and Its business Including Its control environment
and information systems, sufficent to make audit
risk assessments and develop the audit strategy

and plan;

~ Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the opening balances including the
selection and application of accounting principles;
and

- Communicating with the previous auditors,

Due to the additional considerations involved with
initial audits, significant audit attention was
required and hence, considered a Key Audit
Matter.

= Analyzed the Company’s sensitivity analysis in
main areas being the sales growth, operating
margin and long-term market growth-rate
assumptions.

- Obtained corroborating evidence regarding the
cash flow forecasts by comparing the
managements’ forecasts for current year with
actual results.

- Assessed the adequacy of external sources of
finance available to the Company as well as the

parent company's support by inspecting the
relevant agreements.

= Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in the
financial statements in accordance with the

requirements of the applicable accounting and
reporting standards..

Following additional audit procedures were applicable
being the auditors of the Company for the first year:

= We conducted meeting with the previous auditors

and gained an understanding of the key sudit risks
and areas of focus Identified by them;

= We performed review of the working papers of
predecessor auditors in order to gain reliance on
opening balances

= We obtained an understanding of the business and
financial statements’ risks relevant to our audit

- We evaluated the client's Internal control

environment including entity level controls in
order to establish our audit strategy.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Managemaent is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the

Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

n A
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other Information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. i, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to reportin this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whaether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control,

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
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financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficlencies in internal control that we Identify during our
audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and whare applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) properbooks of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 201 7 XX of 2017);
b) the statemaent of financial position, the statemant of profit or |oss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn

up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreemaent with the books of account and
returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

d) nozakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1980).

Other matter

The financial statements of Fauji Foods Limited for the year ended 3 | Decamber 2019, were audited by another firm of
chartered accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 3 | Jamuary 2020.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Farooq Hameed,

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants
Lahore: February 18, 2021
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Share premium

Accumulated loss

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment - net of tax

Long term finances - secured
Lease liabdities
Employee retirement benefits

Current liabilities

Current portion of long term liabilities
Short term borrowings - secured

Loan from Parent Company - unsecured
Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued finance cost
Provision for taxation

Contingencies and commitments

AS AT 3| DECEMBER 2020

Note

w

I
12
13
4

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
- e B
8,032,935,630 5,284,071 520
1,922,317,157 1,925,340,907
(15,187,985,634) (12,196,616,692)
1,243,724 345 1,309417,781
(3,989,008,502) (3.677.786,084)
6,117,124,491 2,708,333,333

187,399,528 255,555,628

77,169,944 76,634,948
6,381,693,963 3,040,523,909
117,787,993 1,745,608 877
1,875,297,551 6,691,944,126
5,925,000,000 2,630,000,000
873,500,682 1,166,742,07|
965,752 965,752
533,632,385 554,807,673
"7 N PR
9.340,500,487 12,790,068,499
L 185,948 12,15

The annexed notes | to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Q@M.A_l_

L=

Chief Executive  Director

Chief Findncial Officer




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 fauiji foods
Note 2020 2019

ASSETS Rupees Rupees
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 17 7,550,092,840 8,106,036,190
Intangible assets 18 20,353,143 39,393,564
Security deposits 6,606,122 6,606,122
Deferred taxation - net 19 . A

7,577,052,105 8,152,035,876
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 20 191,143,537 237,545,924
Stock-in-trade 21 543,962,813 1,443,222,934
Trade debts - considered good 2 350,850,105 18117112
Loans and advances - considered good 23 151,199,690 64,645.85|
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 24 76,170474 233,956,743
Due from associated companies 25 2,878,540 39,247
Sales tax refundable - net 636,649,383 563,303,259
Income tax recoverable 1,314 371,072 1,162,750,979
Cash and cash equivalents 26 868,888,229 114,134,399

4,156,133,843 4,000,770,448

[ 185,948 12,152 806 324

Chairman Chief Executive Director Chief Findncial Officer



STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Noto 2020 2019

Rupees Rupees
Revenue from contracts with customers - net 27 7,373,162,067 5,744,872,328
Cost of revenue 28 (7.310,900,013) (6.423,699.048)
Gross profit / (loss) 62,262,054 (678.826,720)
Marketing and distribution expenses (854,143,010) (1.309,604,707)
Admnistracive expenses (355,432,212) (438,268,935)
Loss allowance on trade debts 2.1 . (7,678,704)
Loss from operations (1,147,313,168) (2.434,379,066)
Other income 3 98,704,064 98,311,925
Other expenses n (242,918,870) (218,794,869)
Finance cost 3 (1,752,267,407) (1,698,166,696)
Loss before taxation (3,043,795,381) (4,253,028,706)

Taxation 34

Current (14,316,124) -
Deferred - (1,535,908,768)
Loss after taxation (3,058, 111,505) (5,788,937,474)
Restated
Loss per share - basic and diluted 35 (4.62) (10.74)

The annexed notes | to 45 form an integral part of these financlal statements.

/f)a/“}/mﬂ_.l_

L=

Chief Executive  Director

Chief Findncial Officer



STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  fauiji foods
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Loss after taxation for the year (3.058,111,505)  (5,788,937,474)
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefic obligation 1,049,127 4,304,250
Total comprehensive loss for the year (3,057,062,378)  (5,784,633.224)

The annexed notes | to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ChiefExecutive  Director Chief Findncial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Capital Reserve h—-—!J
twed, Surphus
subscribed ﬂ:
and paid-up Share of property, Accumutated e
capital premium plant and loss
equipment-
net of tax
Rupess
As at 01 january 2019 5284071920  1,925,340,507 1424377 761 (6,/491,314,836) 2,142,475,752
Total comprehansive loss for the year
Loss after taxation - (5,788,937, 474) | | (5,788,937 474)
Other comprebensive loss for the year
Remeasurernent of defined beneft obligation 4,304,250 4304250
Total comprehensive loss - - (5.784,633.224)  (5.784.633.224)
Surphus transferred to accumulated losses
Dispamal of plant and machinery - net of tx (5.774,191) 5,409
Incremental deprecation relating to surplus
on revabation - net of tax - (557.77) 7355777 -
Effect of change in tax rate an account of surphs
on property. plant and equpment . (35,628.412) (35,628,612)
Balance as ot 31 Decamber 2019 $,284,071,920  1,925,340,907 1,309417,781  (12,196,616,692) (3,677,786,084)
Conversion of debt to equity
Parent loan 2,630,000,000 - - 2,630,000,000
Accroed markup 118,863,710 . - - 118,863,710
Sare mamnce con «  Ganase) . . (3,023,750)
2,748,863,710 (3,023,750) . - 2,745,839,960
Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss afar taxation - - - | | (3,058,111,505) | | (3,058,11),505)
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Remeasurernent of defined benefit obligation - . - 1,049,127 1,049,127
Total comprehensive loss . . = (3057.062378) (3.057.062378)
Surphs transferred to accumulated losses
Despasal of plant and machinery - net of tx - . (69,295) 9,395 -
Incremental deprecation relating to surphus (65,624,041) 65,624,041 -
Balance as at 31 December 2020 8,032,935630 1 922317,157 1, 243,724.345  (15,187,985,634) (3,989,008,502)
The annexed notes | to 45 form an integral part of thase financial statements.
Chairman Chief Executive Director Chief Findncial Officer




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Gan on disposal of property. plant and equipment
Lass allowance on trade debts

Prowvision for obsolete stores and spares
Provsion/write off for obsolete stock
Prafit on bark depesits
Urrealzod foregn exchange ‘oss

Pravision for amgioyes retiremaent benelits

Far valoe adjustment of interest froe socumty deposit
Finmnce cost

Loss before working capital changes

Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
(Increase) | decrasss in current assecs:

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments and other recenvables

Dus from associsted companies

Sades tax refundable

Trade and other payables

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

Employme berefits pad

Security deposits - net

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Sale proceeds from disposal of property. plant and equipment
Income on bank deposts recaived

Net cash used In Investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities

Long term frances - net

Short tarm borrowings - net

Lease rentals pasd

Finance cost pasd

Loan received from Parent Company

Share smuance cost

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increass / (decrease) In cash and cash squivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year

Note

7.7

Fd
3

The annexed notes | to 45 form an Integrad part of these financlal statements.

£

fauiji foods

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
(3.,043,795,381) (4.253,028,706)
699,926,589 774,183,096
19,040,421 21,483 463
(32,240,063) (32,666,185)

- 7.M

. 5,256,700
242,290,040 55,280,299

(44,490,685) (56,198,286)

9 247343

14015292 20,988,466
. 4258184
1,752,267 407 1,698,166 .69
(392,986,440) (1,754,347.226)
46,402,387 (100,670, | 64)
656,950,081 (118,105,721)
(169,478,993) (64.276,551)
(86,553,839) (3,118,758)
157,786,269 499,830,850
(2,839,293) 269,648
(73,346,124) (122506, |1 45)
(293,241 389) (88,770,134)
3
(157,507,341) (1,751 694,201)
(151,620,093) (IT04,721)
(12,431,110) (26.217,084)

b GQM_
(021,558,544) (1.960.936,006)
(163,765,492) B79577.317)

52,022316 84,043,558
44,490,686 56,196,286 |
(67,252,490) (739.235.473)
1,850,915,648 | (133.333,333)
(1,320,867,588) 1,199,998,552
(138,101, 474) (142.335,001)
(1,654,578,985) (1,339,007 691)
5.925,000,000 2,630,000,000
L I ¥
4659343851 22153057
4270532817 (464.948,952)
~BOZTEN1E) N (4S42B6274T)
—mlaT000Y) (027811699

Chief Executive @ Director

Chief Findncial Officer
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Corporate and general information

Fauji Foods Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 26 September | 966 as a Public Company
under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is a subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (the Parent
Company). The Company is principally engaged in processing and sale of toned milk, milk powdar, fruit juices,
allied dairy and food products. Following are the business units of the Company along with their respective

locations:

BUSINESS UNIT LOCATION

Production Plant Bhalwal, District Sargodha

Registered Office and Head Office 42 CCA, Ex Park View, DHA Phase-VIll, Lahore.

Consequent to acquisition of the Company by Fauji Group in year 2015, the management has taken various
operational measures towards transformation of the Company that includes curtailment of higher input costs,
increasing production scales to optimum levels by BMR - balancing, modernization and replacement of
production facility (during the last four years), strengthening of milk collection and sales and distribution
structures, The management has also taken various financial Initiatives towards improvement of liquidity that
inchuded time to time raising of equity finance through right issue, arrangement of long term and working capital
facilities to support working capital and capital expenditure requirements. The Parent Company has approved
additional financial support of Rs. 6,000 million out of which Rs. 5,925 million has been disbursed during the year
for meeting the working capital requirements and contractual obligations of the Company. Further the parent
has provided standby letter of credit amounting to Rs. 1,000 milion and revolving corporate guarantee as
additional security against syndicate finance facility.

Due to continuous operational losses for the last few years, current liabilities exceed current assets by
Rs. 5,184.37 miillion, equity eroded and stands at negative Rs. 3,989.01 miillion and with the operations being

WMWWWWMM the total debt amounts to Rs, 13,967,88
milllion as on 3| December 2020.

However, in the year 2020, The Company has shown recovery compared to 2019 with a topline growth of
28.34% and reduction of |oss after tax by 47.17%.The Board of the Directors ("BOD") of the Company have
approved |0 year business plan that shows Improvements in cash generadion. The Company has also achleved
financial restructuring of the overall financial debt of the company. As per the terms of restructuring, the
company has secured a profit and principal grace period of one year and two and a half years respectively along
with extension in the repayment period by 5 years.

The management and the Board considers that the measures as axplained above would result in availability of
adequate financial resources for the Company to sustain the continuity of its business operations for the
foreseeable future and thus maintain its going concern status. Accordingly, these financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Company will continue to operate its business, realize
its assets, and discharge its liabilities, in the normal course of business.

Impact of COVID-19 on the unconsolidated financial statements

The World Health Organization declared COVID- |9 a global pandemic on | | March 2020. Accordingly, on 20
March 2020, the Government of Pakistan announced temporary lock down as a measure to reduce the spread of
COVID-19. The outbreak of COVID-19 has had a distressing impact on overall demand in the global economy

with notable downgrade In growth forecasts.

The Company’s management s fully cognizant of the business challenges posed by the COVID- | 9 outbreak and
closely monitoring the possible impacts on the Compary 's operations and liquidity positions and believes that its
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current policies for managing credit, liquidity and market risk are adequate in response to current situation.

The managemant has assessed the impact of the COVID- |19 on the financial statemants and concluded that, as the
Company is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of food items mainly including dairy and allied products which are
essential items, thers is no material financial impact of COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities,
income or expenses which required specific disclosures,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Sctatement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

= International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notifled under the Companles Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 201 7 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
measurement of certain items of property, plant and equipment as referred to in note | 7 at revalued amounts,
recognition of lease Fability and employee retirement benefits as referred to in note 9 and 10 at present value

respectively.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company's functional currency and all
financial information presented has been rounded off to the nearest rupees, except otherwise stated.

2.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations and forth coming requirements.
2.4.1 Standards, amendments or interpretations which became effective during the year

During the year certain amendments to standards or new Interpretations became effective. However, the
amendments or interpretations did not have any material effect on the financial statements of the

Company.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures resulting from amendments in standards during
the year.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial stataments are consistent with those

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Definition of a Business (amendments) January 01, 2020
IFRS7&  Financial instruments - Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in  january 01, 2020
IFRS 9 the context of the interest rate benchmark reform (IBOR)




IFRS 16
IFRS 14

Presentation of Fimancial Seatements & Accounting Policies, Changes in  January 01, 2020

Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Material, to clarify the definition
of material and Its alignment with the definition used In the Conceptual

Framework (amendments)
Covid- 1 9-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS | 6)

Ragulatory Deferral Accounts - Original issue

June 01, 2020
July 1, 2019

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did not have
any material effect on the financial statement.

The IASB has also lssued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financlal Reporting (the Conceptual
Framework) In March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 january 2020 for
preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Concepeual Framework. The
revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or
any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing

standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place
and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

2.4.1.2 Ammendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards,
as applicable in Pakistan, would be effective from the dates mentioned below and have not been adopted early

by the Company:

Standard and IFRIC

IFRS7 & IFRS 9

IAS 16

IAS 37

IFRS 10
& |AS 28

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —~ Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS4and IFRS 16

Business Combinations - The amendment updates a reference In IFRS 3 to the

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the
accounting requirements for business combinations.

Property, plant and equipment — Amendment to clarify the prohibition on an
entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from
salling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or |oss,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets to specify which costs
an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-
malking,

Presentation of Financial Statements to clarify how to classify debt and other
Habibties as current or non-current.

Consolidated Financial Statements & Investment in Assoclates and joint
Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture —(Amendment)

Effective date

(annual periods
beginning on or
after)

January 01,2021

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2023

Not yet finalized
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The Company expects that the adoption of the above standards and amendments will have no material effect on the
Company’s inancial statements,

In addition to the above new standards and amendments to standards, Improvements to various accounting
standards (under the annual improvements 2018 - 2020 cycle) have also been issued by the IASB in May 2020. Such
Improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2022:

IFRS | First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards: Subsidiary as a first-time adopter -
The amendment parmits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D|6(a) of IFRS | to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent’s date
of transition to IFRS, This amendmant is also applied to an associate or joint venture that elects to apply
paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Fees in the '10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities - The
amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial Bability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These
fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behall. There is no similar amendment
proposed for IAS 39.

IFRS 16 Leases: Lease incentives — The amendment removes the llustration of payments from the lessor relating

to leasehold improvements in |llustrative Example |3 accompanying IFRS |6. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.

IAS 41 Agriculture; Taxation in fair value measurements — The amendment removes the requirement in
paragraph 22 of IAS 4| that entities exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of
assets within the scope of IAS 41,

The Company expects that the adoption of the above standards will have no material effect on the Company's
financial statements, in the period of initial application.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by the IASB, which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the
purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

Standard Effective date (annual periods beginning on or after)
IFRS | First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards Jarwary 01, 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2023

The Company expects that the adoption of the sbove standards will have no material effect on the Company's
financial statements, in the period of initial application.

3 SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are befleved to be reasonable under circumstances, and the results of which
form the basis for making judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected,
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Judgments made by management in the application of approved accounting standards that have significant effect
on the financial statemaents and estimates with a risk of material adjustment in subsequent years are as follows:

Depreciation method, rates and useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management of the Company reassesses useful lives and residual value for each item of property, plant and
equipment annually by considering expected pattern of economic benefits that the Company expects to derive
from that item and the maximum period up to which such benefits are expected to be available. Any change in
the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of property, plant and
equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment. During the year the
Company has revised Its estimate of method of depriciation of bullding and plant and machinary. Effect of change
In method of depreciation of bullding, plant and machinery is expiained in note 17.1.6.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuers. Revalued
amounts of non-depreciable items are determined by referance to local market values and that of depreciable
itarms are determined by reference to present depreciated replacement values.

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of property, plant and
equipment being revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its carrying amount, a
further revaluation is required. It may be necessary to revalue the item only every three to five years.

Stores and spare parts

The Company reviews the stores and spare parts for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of stores and spares with a

corresponding effect on provision.
Stock in trade

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade for possible impairment on a regular basis.
Carrying amount of stock-in-trade is adjusted where the net realizable value is below the cost. Net realizable
value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion
and the estimated cost necassary to be incurred to make the sale.

Expected credit loss (ECL) / Loss allowance against trade debts, deposits, advances and other
receivables

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to
the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment. When determining whether the credit risk of a financlal asset has Increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that Is relevant and avallable without undue cost or effort. This Incdudes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
Informed credit assessment incdluding forward-looking information.

The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables to assess
amount of loss allowance required onanannual basis.
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3.6 Impairment

The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets including cash generating units for
possible impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is any such indication.

3.7 Provisions and contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company (based on current
legal and constructive obligations). Based on its judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated
financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual outcome of these litigations and
claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date.

3.8 Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities,
Instances where the Company’s views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance
with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

3.9 Staffretirement benefits

The Company operates an accumulated compensated absences and unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan as
explained In note 4.3.2 and 4.3.3 to these financial statements. The calculation of the benefit requires
assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increase in remuneration and
the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to current values. The assumptions used for the plan are

determined by independent actuary.

Cost primarily represents actuarial present value of the obligation for benefits earned on employee service
during the year and employee service in previous years. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the undertying
assumptions.

4 Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

4.1 Taoation
Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevadling law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax Is calculated using prevalling tax rates or tax
rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted, after taking Into account tax credits, rebates and
exemptions, If any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to
provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. However, deferred tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all tuable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
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that it is probable that table profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaitable
to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utikized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to other
comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income or equity.

Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains lease, A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified
asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right of use
asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct cost incurred less any lease incentive
received, The right of use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability, if any. The right of use assets is depreciated
using the straight line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or cost of the right of use
asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right of use asset will be
depreciated over the useful ife of the underlying asset, which Is determined on the same basis as those of

property, plant and equipment. Right of use asset is disclosed in the property, plant and equipment as referred to
in 17.1 of the financial statements,

The lease llabllity is Initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not pald at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's Incremental borrowing rate. The Company has used it incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate for leases where rate is not readily available. The lease liability is subsequently increased by
the interest cost on the lease kability and decreased by lease payment made.

The lease kability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured when there
Is a change In future lease payments arising from a change In rate or a change in the terms of the lease

arrangement, if there is change in the Company s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the |ease liability is re-

measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right of use asset, or is
recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right of use asset has been reduced to zero.
Refer note 9 to these financial staterments for disclosure of lease lability.

Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right of use assets and liabilities for some leases of low value assets
(milk collection centers/sales offices). The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases
asan expense on a straight line basis over the lease tarm.

Employees’ retirement benefits
4.3.1 Defined contribution plan
Provident fund
The Company is operating an approved provident fund scheme for all its employees since 01 May 1986,

— |
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Equal monthly contributions are made by the employer and the employee to the fund in accordance with the
fund rules at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

Accumulated compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with the rules of the
Company. The Company accounts for these benefits in the year in which the absences are earned. Retired army

officers and other employees are entitied to earned leaves of 30 days and 20 days per annum respectively. The
unutilized leaves are accumulated subject to a maximum of 120 days for ex-servicemen and 20 days for
management & 28 days for non-management employees. The unutilized accumutated leaves can be enchased at
the time the employee leaves Company service. The accumulated |eave balance in excess of above mentioned

limits s ignored while determining benefit obligations.

The Company uses the actuarial valuations carried out using the projected unit credit method for valuation of its
accumulated compensating absences. The latest vakation was carried out on 3| December 2020. Provisions
are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulating compensated absences based on actuarial valuation
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss. The amount recognized in the statement of financial position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligations. Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the
statement of profit or loss Immediately in the period when these occur.

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan for all parmanent employees, having a service
period of more than three years for retired army officers and more than five years for other employees. The

Company recognizes axpense In accordance with IAS |9 *Employee Benefits".

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods and discounting that amount. The
calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method, The latest valuation was carried out on 3 | December 2020,

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are recognized
Immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest expense on the net
defined benefit Rabllity for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit llability, taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit

Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss. Past service costs are immediately recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Account balances are classified as current labilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycles of business if longer). If not, they are classified as non-current
liabilities,

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on transiation in respect of Kabilities in

foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective kabllities.
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable, will result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benelits, to settle the
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obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current bast estimate.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent lability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the

Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are classified as financial kabilities at amortized cost. Borrowings are recognized initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabiities unless the Company has an unconditional /
contractual right to defar settlemant of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Finance cost are accountad for on an accrual basis and are included in accrued finance cost to the exxent of the
remaining amount unpaid.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
Intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized In statement of profit or loss in the period In which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold fand, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric
and gas installations, milk churns and other work equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecation and
identified impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount carried out by independent valuers by
reference to its current market price less any identified impairment loss. Bulldings on freehold land, plant and
machinery, electric and gas instaltations, milk churns and other work equipment are stated at revalued amount
carried out by independent valuers by reference to current market price less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impairment loss. Cost in relation to property, plant and equipment comprises acquisition and other
directly attributable costs.

Surplus on revaluation is booked by restating gross carrying amounts of respective assets being revalued,
proportionately to the change in their carrying amounts due to revaluation. The accumulated depreciation at the
date of revaluation is also adjusted to equal difference between gross carrying amounts and the carrying amounts of
the assets after taking into account accumulated impairment losses.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. Each year the
difference batween deprediation basad on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of
profit or loss, and depreciation based on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings. Upon disposal,
any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is transferred to retained earnings. All transfers
to/ from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are net of applicable deferred tax.




4.10

4.11

4.2

£

fauiji foods

Deprediation on building and plant and machinery on straight line method and all other property, plant and
equipment except freehold land, is charged to statement of profit or loss on the reducing balance method so as
to write-off the depreciable amount of an asset over its remaining estimated useful life after taking into account
the impact of their residual value, if considered significant. The assets' residual values and useful lives are

reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

Useful lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected physical wear and
tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar bmits on the use of the assets and other similar
factors.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset is
acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-off.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only whaen it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of
profit or loss during the year in which these are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there Is any Indication that property, plant and
equipment may be impalred. If such Indication exdsts, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to assess
whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment is
recognized In statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to

sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognizad, the deprediation charge is adjusted in the future
periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful ife.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairmaent loss, if any. It consists of all expenditures
and advances connected with specific assets incurred and made during installations and construction period.

These are transferred to relevant property, plant and equipment as and when assets are avallable for use,
Intangible assets

Expenditure incurred on intangible asset is capitalized and stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any
Identified impairment loss. intangible assets with finite useful ife are amortized using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful [ife of three years. Amortization of intangible assets s commenced from the date an
asset is capitalized.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Usable stores, spares and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered
obsolete are impaired. ltems in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid
thereon up to the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spares and |loose tools
on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence, if there is any change in usage pattern and physical
form of refated stores.

Stock-in-trade

Stock of raw and packing materials, work-in-process and finished goods, except for thase in transit, are valued
principally at the lower of average cost and net realizable value, Cost in relation to raw and
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packing materials is measured at moving average cost. Work-in-process and finished goods are measured at
weighted average cost and cost comprises direct materials, labour and appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads,
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Stock in transit is stated at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date,

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business |ess estmated cost of
completion and the estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Financial instruments

4.13.1

4132

Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial kabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, fair value through

other comprehensive income (FVOCT), fair value through statement of profit or loss (FYTPL) and in
case of an equity instrument It is classifled as FVOCI or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified

on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.
Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses

and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in staternent of profit or loss.

Financlal assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade
debts and other receivables.

Debt Instrument - FYOCI

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI If it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
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« itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and sefling
financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method,

foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognized in OCL. On derecognition, gains and |osses accumudated in OC] are reclassified to statement of
profit or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.

Equity Instrument - FVOCI

On initial recognition of an equity investmant that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in statement of profit or
loss unless the dividend dearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognized in OCI and these investments are never reclassified to statement of profit or loss. However, the
Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.

Fair value through statement of profit or loss (FYTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FYTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FYOC]| as at FVTPL if doing so efiminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, inchuding any interest or dividend income,
are recognized in statement of profit or loss. The Company has no such investments at the reporting date.

Financial assets - Business model assessment

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition,
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal

amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. Bquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepaymentand extension features; and

- terms that limit the Comgany's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g, non-recourse features).

l .
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Financial liabdities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liabdlity Is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition,
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, while the interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in statement of profit or lass. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in statement of
profitor loss.

The Company’s financial Kabilities comprise trade and other payables, long and short term borrowings, loan
from the Parent Company, accrued markup and dividend payable.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financlal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in 2 transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

The Company might enter into transactions whareby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, In these
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized,

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified kability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a financial Babllity, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (Including any non-cash assets transferred or liabllities assumed) Is
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabdities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial

position only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends to
either sattle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:
- fimancial assets measured at amortized cost;

- debtinvestments measured at FVOCI; and

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which
are measured at | 2-month ECLs:
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- debtsecurities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and w foods

- other debt securities, bank balances and other receivables for which credit risk (Le. the risk of default
occurring over the expected ife of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

12-menth ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the |12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than |2 months),

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking Information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly If it is more than past
due for a reasonable period of time. Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. |2-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events that are possible within the | 2 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
axpected life of the instrument is less than |2 months). The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable

expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company Individually
makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written
off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to

comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
Non - Finandal assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. if any such
indication exists, then the assat’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash
generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

An iImpalrment loss Is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit exceeds lts
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment |osses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in
a unit on a pro rata basis. iImpairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for
any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that
extent that the asset's carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpase of cash flow
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4.16

417

4.18

4.19
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statermnent, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances at banks and outstanding balance of short
term running finances.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
transiations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are taken to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currency that
are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable for sale of goods, net of sales tax, sales
returns and related discounts and commissions. Revenue is recognized when or as performance obligation is
satisfled by transferring control of promised goods or services to a customer and control either transfers
overtime or point In time.

Return on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the
applicable rate of return.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liabiity is
recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier), Contract liabdities are
recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. It also includes refund Rabilities arising
out of customers’ right to claim amounts from the Company on account of contractual delays in delivery of

performance obligations and incentive on target achievements.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In a2 manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and

assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company
that makes strategic decisions. On the basis of its intarnal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be

a single reportable segment. All non-current assets of the Company are located in Pakistan and 100% of the
ravenue is derived from sale of dairy and allied products.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividends and appropriations to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these
areapproved,

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
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§ Share capital
5.1 Authorized capital 2020 2019 2020 2019
- - (Number of shares) - - Rupees Rupees
Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000 700,000,000  10,000,000,000 7,000,000,000
5.2 lssued, subscribed and paid up capital
Ordinary share capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully 503,934,166 503,934,166 5,039,341,660 5,039,341 660
paid in cash
Ordinary shares of Rs [0 each 2,639,200 2,639,200 26,392,000 26,392,000
Issued as fully paid bonus shares
Ordinary shares of Rs [0 each 289,520,197 14,633,826 2,895,201,970 146,338,260
issued as fully paid on conversion of
loans (note 5.5)
Voting ordinary shares of Rs. |0 each 7,200,000 7,200,000 72,000,000 72,000,000

issued on conversion of 12%
cumulative convertible preference

shares
—SSIN6 _ SNAOLN __SEnsinese _SIAGTIS0
$.3 Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated undertakings and directors at year end are as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019

Ordinary share capital = === Percentage held - - - - == =« Number of shares - - - -
Fouji Fertiizer Bin Qosim Limited

- voting ordinary shares 67.50% 50.59% 542,201,257 267,314,886
Fouji Foundation

- voting ordinary shares 8.39% 12.75% 67,371,916 67371916
Directors, Chief Executive, afficers and

their spouse and minor chifdren

- voting ordinary shares 0.00% 0.00% 40,000 b1
FFBL Provident Fund

- voung ordinary shares 0.00% 171% - 14,306,000
FFBL Gratuity Fund

- voting ordinary shares 1.97% - 10,400,500

609,613,173 359,393,393
5.4 The holders of voting ordinary shares are entited to receive dividends as declared (if any), and are entitied to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

5.5 During the year ended, Company has allotted 274,886,371 shares to parent Company on |5 july 2020 at par
value against loan principal amounting to Rs. 2,630 million along with accrued markup amounting to Rs. |18.86
million respectively after obtaining regulatory approvals,

6 Share premium
This reserve can only be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in Section 81(2) of the Companies Act,

2017. During the year ended, Company utilized reserve against share issuance cost resulting from conversion of debt
from parent Company to equity.
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7  Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and

equipment - net of tax
Revaluation surplus as at 0 january

Surplus transferred to accumulated losses on account of:
- disposal of plant and machinery - net of deferred tax

- Incremental depreciation charged during the year - net of
deferred tax

Related deferred tax liability
- disposal of plant and machinery
- incremental depreciation charged during the year

Revaluation surplus as at 3| December

Less: Related deferred tax liability on revakation
surplus at 01 January

Reduction in deferred tax lability due to:

- disposal of plant and machinery

- Incremental depreciation charged during the year

< tax rate adjustment

Deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus as at 3| December

Revaluation surplus as at 3| December - net of tax

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
1,577,459,635 1.689,193,958

(69,395) (5.774,191)
(65,624,041) (73.557,177)
(28,345) (2,358.473)
(26,804,186) | (30,044,482)
(92,525,967) (111,734,323)
1,484,933,668 1,577,459,635
268,041,854 264.816,197
(28,345) (2,358,473)
(26,804, 186) (30,044,482)
- 35,628,612
(26,832,531) 3,225,657
241,209,323 268,041,854
1,243,724,345 1,309,417,781

7.1 The Company revalued its freehold land, bulldings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric and gas
installations and other works equipment during the financial years 1999, 2011, 2015 and 2017. The latest
revahation was conducted by K.G Traders (independent valuers and consultants). Freehold land was
revalued on the basis of current market value whereas other assets were revalued on the basis of
depreciated market values. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per acre for land,
price per square foot for buildings and present operational condition and age of plant and machinery and

other assets,

Long term finances - secured Note

Long term finances - secured

Long term loans
Syndicate Finance Facility 8.1
Salary Refinance Facility 85

Current maturity presented under current liabilities 1]

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
6,066,666,667 4,316,666,667
100,915,648 -
6,167,582,315 4,316,666,667
(50,457,824)  (1,608,333,334)
6,117,124,491 2,708,333 333
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8.1 Asyndicate finance facility is jointly led by Faysal Bank Limited, National Bank of Pakistan, MCB bank limited and
Allied Bank limited and participated by Askari bank limited, Alfalah bank imited, Soneri Bank limited, Dubai
Islamic Bank limited whereby the outstanding exposure of all the banks was restructured into long term and
short term exposure on prorata basis. The restructuring was done under the State Bank of Pakistan's circular
No, BPRD Gircular Letter No. |3 of 2020 dated 26 March 2020.

The bank wise exposure of participant and lead banks after restructuring and clubbed as on is as follows:

2020 2019 Markupasper  Tonure and bask
Note Bank Name Facility Rupees Spen of principal
821  Alked Bank Limited TermFinance 646,544,141 666,666,667 The loan is
822  Navons Bank of Pészan  Tarm Finance 941,976,909 750,000,000 m‘.’
823  MCB Bank Limived Demand Finance  1,084,158,027  1,000,000,000 grace period of
824  Faysal Bank Limived Torm Fimnce  1,733,459,001  1,990,000,000 m i s
825  Askari Bank Limited Term Finance 396,544, 141 1.5% per be 1 form of

annum, payable stepoed up

826  Alfsish Bark Limived Torm Finace 247,840,088 - quarterty quarterty
827  Sonert Bank Limited Demand Finance 495,680,175 m
828 S Bank imined Torm Finuce 247,840,088 "'m“‘f:
829  Dubal lslemic Bank Umited  Tarm Finance 272,624,097 007

The syndicate finance facility is secured by way of pari passu charge amounting to PKR 8,089 Million inclusive of
259 margin on fixed assets along with mortgage by constructive deposit of title deeds of property / land
measuring | 20 kanals and building thereon situated in Mauza Purana Bhalwal, Tehsil Bhalwal, District Sargodha
in favour of security agent (i.e. Faysal bank limited). The syndicate finance facility is additionally secured through
sponsor support in the form of Stand by letter of credit amounting to PKR 1,000 Million from Askari bank limited
and a revolving corporate guarantee.

All these facilities have been cdubbed under Master Finance Agreement executed on 2| December 2020 which
became effective from 01 August 2020.

8.4

8.5 The Company avalled a salary refinance facility under SBP circular number IH&SMEFD Circular No. 06 and 07 of

2020 dated 10 April 2020 from JS Bank Limited. As per the SBP circular and terms of the facility, the facility is

repaid in 8 equal quarterly installments starting from January 2021. The facility is priced at 3% and secured
against a charge on current and fixed assets at a margin of 25%.

Note 2020 2019

9 Lease liabilities Rupees Rupees
Leased vehicles - secured 9.1 15,703,678 67,942,457
Leased machinery - unsecured 132,399,740 207,531,397
Leased bullding - unsecured 106,626,279 | 117357317
254,729,697 392,831,171
Current maturity presented under current liabilities " (67.330,169) (137,275,543)

187,399,528 235,555 628
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The Company has entered into lease agreemaents with different commercial banks for vehicles, with a supplier for filling
machines and with a landlord for building. The rentals under these agresments are repayable in 24 to 60 monthly and
quarterly instalments. The minimum lease payments have been discounted at an implicit interest rate of 7.56% to 14.39%
(2019: 10,43% to 14,399 ) per annum to arrive at their present value. At the end of the respective lease term, the assets
other than building, shall be transferred in the name of the Company. Taxes, repairs and insurance costs are to be borne by
the Company. In case of early termination of lease, the lessee shall pay entire amount of rentals for unexpired period of
lease agreement.

2020 2019
Up to From ome to five Upte From one 1o five
a) Leasad vehicles - secured one year yeary Total one year years Total
Note Rupees- Rupees--
Particulars
Minimum lease payments 14,929,871 6,902,346 201832017 57,584,327 39,089,162 96,671 489
Less: Fnance costs allocated
to future perods (399.430) (30,859) (430289)  (6996229)  (1.550853)  (8,547,142)
14,530,241 6,871 487 21401728 50,587,998 37,538,309 88,126,307
Less: Security deposits adjustable
on axpiry of lease terms - (5,698,050) (5,698,050) (5330450) (14853200) (20,183.850)
Present value of minimum
lease payments

o _ASeIN __LIMAN _SIGn . B DS _G3as

Leased machinery - unsecured

Particulars
Mirimum lesse paymees 44,032,116 124,757,662 168,789,778 96719511 168,789,779 265509290
Less:  Finance costs allocated

to future periods (15,561,069) (20820,969) (36390,038) (21,541075) (6AMBI8)  (57.977893)

JIBATIOAT 100920693 132399740 75178436 132352961 207531397

Loased building - unsecured

Particulars
Minimum lease paymenes 34,372,800 98,458,976 132,831,778 31992000 127375776 159367776
Less: Fnance costs allocated
to hature periods (10,043,919) (16,161,578) (26205497)  (15,150240) (26858219) (42,010459)
Mnsssl 82,297,398 106,626,279 16839760 100517557 117357317

9.1 This includes amount of Rs. |5.70 million (2019: Rs. 34,58 million) payable to Askari Bank Limited, a related

party.
Note 2020 2019
10 Employee retirement benefits
Accumulated compensated absences 10.1 21,540,928 26,760,382
Defined benefit plan 10.2 __55629016 49,874,566

ﬂll”'m gm,m
10.1 Movement in accumulated compensated absences

Balance as at 0| January 26,760,382 31,608,489
Charge to statement of profit or loss 10.1.1 5,503,013 15,683,893
Benefits pac during the year _(10722467) __ (20532.000)

Balance as at 3| December

|
254038 276038
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2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
10.1.1  Charge to the statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 1,821,249 10,404,879
Interest on defined benefit liability 1,409,572 1,413,940
Remeasurement loss 2,272,192 3,865,074
5,503,013 15,683,893
10.1.2  The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:
2020 2019
Discount rate 10.00% 12.50%
Expected per annum growth rate in salaries 10.00% 12.50%
Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005)  SLIC (2001-2005)

As at 31 December 2020, average accumulation of leaves is 10 days perannum (2019: 16 days per annum),

subject to a maximum accumulation of 20 days for management employees, 28 days for non-management
employees and |20 days for ex-servicemen (2019: 60 days for civillans and |20 days for ex-servicemen).

10.1.3  Sensitivity analysis
If the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the present value of liability at the reporting date, had
fluctuated by 100 bps with all other variables held constant, the present value of the liability as at 31
December 2020 would have been as follows:

10.1.3.1 Present value of iability at the year end

Due to increase in assumptions
2020 2019
------------ Rupees -~ «vvvvvvns
Discount rate 100 bps 21,725,661 28414437  23468,198 30,693 457
Salary increase 100 bps 28379411 21,700,676 | 30665621 23.44)209
Note 2020 2019
10.2 Present value of defined benefit obligation Rupees Rupees
Balance as at 01 January 49,874,566 54,559,328
Charge to statement of profit or loss 10.2,1 8,512,220 5,304,572
Benefits paid during the year (1,708,643) (5.685,084)
Charge to other comprehensive income 1022 (1,049,127) (4,304 ,250)
Balance as at 3| December M 4’&:4&
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2020 2019
10.2.1 Charge to the statement of profit or loss ' .
Current service cost 16,211,737 15372476
Gain on settlements (13,920,378) (16,920,378)
Interest on defined benefit liability 6220861 6,852,474
¢ B—F Y1
10.2.2 Charge to other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain on present value
- Experience adjustments 1,049,127 _1&
1023  The estimated expense to be charged to the statament of profit or loss in next year on account of current
service cost and interest cost amounting to Rs. 16.21 millionand Rs, 5.6 | million respectively.
10.2.4  The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:
2020 2019
Discount rate 10.00% 12,509
Expected per annum growth rate in salaries 10.00% 12.50%
Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005) SUIC (2001-2005)
As at 31 December 2020, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 9 years (2019: 8
years).
10.2.5  Sensitivity analysis
I the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date, had
fuctuated by 100 bps with all other varfables held constant, the present value of the defined benefit obligation
asat 3 | December would have been as follows:
10.2.5.1 Present value of defined benefit obligation at year end
Due to increase in assumptions
2020 2019
------------- Rupees « - cvcvcucunan
Discount rate 100 bps 50,113,363 68,859,788 43,692,623 57,360,104
Salary increase 100 bps 65,774,220 50,054,090 57.287.568 43,642,252
2020 2019
1| Current portion of long term labilities Note Rupees Rupees
Long term finances - secured 8 - 1,608,333 334
Lease kabilities 9 67,330,169 137,275,543
Salary refinance-JS bank 8 50,457,824 -
117,787,993 |, 745,608,877
12 Short term borrowings - secured
Short term running finance 12,1 & 124 1,646,167,111 5,141,946,098
Islamic mode of financing 12.2 229,130,440 1,549,998.028
LOTSINES) | 669194126
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12.1 Short term running finance

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities (“facilities”) under mark-up arrangements
available from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs |,770.83 million (31 December 2019: Rs 5,681.50
milion). These facilities are secured against charge over current assets amounting to PKR 2,500 million inchusive
of 209 margin along with charge on fixed assets amounting to PKR 500 million. The facilites carry markup of 3-
months KIBOR plus spread of | .09 per annum (2019; | to 3 months KIBOR plus spread of 0,509 to 6.65%)

payable quarterly in arrears. These facilities will be expiring in August 2021

1.2  Islamic mode of financing

This utilized amount of short term finance facility (Wakala Istithmar/istisna) avaled from Dubai
Islamic bank. (2019: Albaraka Bank limited and Dubai Islamic Bank limited amounting to Rs | 550 million). The
facility is secured against charge over all current assets amounting to PKR 2,500 Million inclusive of 25% margin
along with charge on fixed assets (excluding land and buliding) amounting to PKR 500 Million. The facility carries
mark-up of 3-months KIBOR pius spread of | .09% per annum (2019: 6 months KIBOR plus spread of 0.75%) per
annum. The facilites are expiring in August 2021.

12.3  Unavailed credit facilities

Out of total facilities for opening of letters of credit of Rs. |50 million (2019: Rs 834.58 milion) as at 3|
December 2020 unutilized amount as of that date was Rs. | 50 million (20 19: Rs 664.43 million).

124 Related party

This includes balance of Rs. 333.33 million (2019: Rs. 709.9! miillion) payable to Askari Bank Limited, an
associated undertaking.

2020 2019
13 Loan from Parent Company - unsecured Rupees Rupees
Mark-up based Subordinated loan - unsecured 5,925,000,000 2,630,000,000

This represent utilized amount of loan availed from the Parent Company (Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited) under
markup arrangement on account of sponsor support of Rs. 6,000 million to meet working capital requirement of
the Company. This loan is for a period of one year and carries markup at 3 months kibor plus 1.59 per annum,
payable quarterly in arrears.

14 Trade and other payables Note Rupees Rupees
Trade and other creditors 443,910,254 777,092,946
Contract liabilities 14.1 108,469,670 86,718,942
Accrued expenses 173,488,242 262,71 1827
Retention money payable 2,971,672 4,012,223
Due to employees 5,074,879 1,017,538
Due to associated undertaking - unsecured 142 16,143,664 1384717
Withholding income tax payable 9,998,263 8,690,633
Withholding sales tax payable 7,591,762 16,835,983
Payable to provident fund 143 4,244,388 5,676,958
Workers' profit participation fund 429,968 429,988
Others 1,177,900 2170316

_ST3se0s  _11e67a2.071
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The contract labilities outstanding at 3| December 2019 have been recognized as revenue during the

year.
2020 2019
14.2 Due to associated undertakings - unsecured Rupees Rupees
Noon Sugar Mills Limited 7,014,925 1,384,717
Fauji Security Services (Private) Limited 272,400 -
FFBL power company limited 7/438,194 -
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 1,418,133 -
16,143,652 1,384,717

14.2.1 These are interest free in the normal course of business for purchase of goods or services.
14.3 Employees' provident fund
The Company operates funded contributory provident fund scheme for all its parmanent and eligible

employees. The following information is based on the unaudited financial statements of the provident fund
for the year ended 3 | December 2020:

(Un-audited) (Audited)
2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees
Size of the fund 182,196,455 198,273,031
Cost of investments made 168,158,377 170,512,226
Percentage of investments made 92% 86%

Invetments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 20| 7 and the rules formutated there under.

2020 2019

IS5 Accrued finance cost Note Rupees Rupees

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

- Long term borrowings - secured 143,610,231 157,926,586

- Short term borrowings - secured 15.1 81,213,376 208,477,050

- Loan from Parent Company - unsecured 13 293,073,510 118,863,714

- Leasa liabilities - 462,905

Islamic mode of financing

- Short term borrowings - secured 69077418

15,735,268 69077418

53432305 554807673

I15.1 This includes amount of Rs, 15.70 million (2019: 28.31) payable to Askari Bank Limited, an associated
undertaking,

16 Contingencies and commitments
16.1 Contingencies
16.1.1 The Company has issued following guarantees:

fFd
-
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Guarantees aggregating Rs. 14.78 milion (2019: Rs. 15.01 million) have been issued by banks on behalf of the
Company to Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan State Ol and Controller Naval Account.

The Tweation Officer, after conducting audit under secton |77 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the
Ordinance) for the tax year 2005, had passed an amended assessment order under section 122 of the
Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs. 34.99 million alleging that the Company suppressed its sales. The
Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A) annulled this assessment order whereas the Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) had set aside the order of CIR-A and remanded the case back to CIR-A for
denovo proceedings. The CIR-A, vide his order dated 03 September 2012, has allowed partial relief of Rs,
11,32 million to the Company. The remaining disputed amount after rectification order under section 221 of
the Income Tax Ordinance 200! dated |6 May 2013 out of Rs, 34.99 million now stands at Rs. 18.28 million,
Both the Company and the Department have filed appeals before the ATIR against the order of CIR-A, which
are pending adjudications.

The Company, during the financial year ended 30 June 2011, received a notice under section 177 of the
Ordinance for the tax year 2009 for selection of its case for detailed scrutiny. The Company filed a writ petition
before the Honourable Lahore High Court which was dismissed vide order dated 27 May 2015.

The Company filed an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan which directed that the
Company should seek remedy In this respect before the intra court appeal of the Honourable Lahore High
Court. The matter is now pending in intra court appeal.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue raised income tax demand under section |22(5A) of the
Ordinance for the tax year 201 | amounting Rs 21.8 million. The Company, through its external legal counsal,
filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) which was decided in favour of the
Company with the exception of Rs. 2.97 million addition by CIR-A. The Company has subsequently filed an
appeal before the ATIR against confirmation of the said addition and the Department is contesting the relief
allowed by CIR-A. Further, second amendment order has also been framed under section |22(5A)
determining additional tax demand at Rs, 14.57 million. The Company filed an appeal before CIR-A against the
second amendment order. The CIR-A set aside the order with directions to revisit the evidence and

explanation and pass a judicious order.

For the year ended June 30, 2012 |-e tax year 2012 amedment order was framed determining tax at Rs,
74,128,663 as against Rs, 22,753,512 conceded In the return, The CIR (Appeals) in his order under section 129
dated December 31, 2018 has confirmed the action of the ACIR in respect of certain additions and set aside
other matters with directions. The company Is not in agreaement with the result in appeal and has filled appeal

before the ATIR which is pending adjudication.

For the Tax year 2013, Amendment order under section |122(5A) has framed on May 16, 2019 wherein
additions for alleged suppresed/Un- reconciled sales has been made at Rs. 43,770,576 and for in admissible
exchange loss amounting to Rs. 4,252,697. Further, tumover tax credit has also been disallowed. Appeal has
been filled before the CIR Appeals against the said additions and refusal to grant tax credit which is pending
adjudication.

Proceedings U/s 149 for short deduction of tax are in progress.
Company was selected for audit under section 2 | 4C for Tax year 20 | 4 as per list published by FBR,

For the Tax year 2014, The Department order in this case has resulted in demand of Rs. 5,923,267 as aginst
refund of Rs. 2,108,564 claimed In the return.

Further the company have obtained stay against recovery of above tax demand under section |40 of ITO 2001,
and has also filled appeal bafore CIR appeals lahore, which is penidng adjudication.
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16.1.8

16.1.9

For the Tax ysar 2017, The company refund was reduced by Rs. 30 million by the DCIR against Rs. 194,192,875
chaimed in the tax return by not allowing full credit of taxes paid,

Appeal has been filled with the CIR Appeals against the order. The CIR appeals has set aside the order and
remanded the case back to the DCIR for re- examination of the evidence of taxes paid.

Proceedings for the WHT audit u/s 161 are In progress.

During the year ended 3| December 2016, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised sales tax
demand of Rs. 4.84 million under section | 1 (2) and | |(3) of the Sales Tax Act | 990 against inadmissible refund claim
and non-realization of sales tax on sale of scrap during the period from Decamber 2012 to March 2013. The
Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR - A) which was decided against the
Company dated November |4, 2016. Baing aggrieved by the treatment meted out, the Company preferred an
appeal before Appeflate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), The ATIR decided the case in favor of the Company and
waived off the whole tax demand against which the Department filed reference before the Honorable Lahore High
Court which is pending adjudication,

16.1.10 During the year ended 3| December 2017, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised sales tax

16.1.11

demand of Rs, |02 million under section 10 and | 1(2) of the Sales Tax Act 1990 against inadmissible input tax
adjustment and non-deduction of withholding sales tax during the period from july 2015 to June 2016, The
Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR - A) which was decided against the
Company. Being aggrieved by the treatment meted out, the Company preferred an appeal before Appeliate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). The ATIR decided the case in favor of the Company and walved off the whole tax
demand against which the Department filed reference before the Honorable Lahore High Court which is pending

adjudication.

During the year ended 3| December 2017, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued sales tax order,
dated 26 May 201 7 for payment of Rs. 974 million for sales tax along with | 009 default surcharge and penalty of Rs.
225 million due to alleged non-payment of sales tax on sales of “Chai Mix, Dairy Rozana and Dostea (tea whitener)”
for the tax period July 201 | to December 201 6. The order is based on the grounds that exemption is available to the
Company only to the extent of dairy products and tea whitener is not milk / dairy product. The Company being

aggrieved filed appeal initially before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) and then to the Appeliate
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) where the matter was heard and decided in favour of the Company on jurisdictional

grounds. The Department and the Company have filed appeals before the Honourable High Court which are
pending adjudication. The Company has also filed a cross reference in high court against the order of ATIR.

16.1.12 Further during the year ended 3| December 2018, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued a

show cause notice, dated 10 October 2018 for payment of Rs. 974 million for sales tax along with 1009 default
surcharge and penalty of Rs. 129 million due to alleged non-payment of sales tax on sales of "Dostea Chal Mix (tea
whitener)” for the tax period january to Decamber 2017. The order was based on the same grounds on which the
order dated 26 May 2017 as explained above was issued) . The Company filed a writ petition against this show cause
notice before the High Court on jurisdictional and technical grounds which is pending adjudication.

Meanwhile, the matter was forwarded by the Regional Tax Officer Sargodha to Modal Custom Collectorate of
Appraisemant (East), Customs House, Karachi for determination of appropriate dlassification of tea whitenaer.
During the year, the matter has been resolved by the classification committes through its order C-
TUKAPE/DC/PCT/2017 dated | | Feburary 2019 and addressed to Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (Large
Taxpayer Unit) for onwards pursual, Through the above order the classification of tea whitner continues to be
under the same PCT code as was determined earfier by the Appraisment Committe through its order of 05 May
2011, Consequent to the decision of the classification committee, the management is hopeful that the above writ
petitions willl be decided in the favour of the Company,

16.1.13 The DCIR has concluded the assessment and proceeding through its order w's | 1(2) for the period from july 2019

to December 2019 has charged sales tax amounting RS 14,000,000. The company being aggrieved by the order

— |
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filed appeal before CIR appeals who, through order 08/2020 dated 29/10/2020 remanded the case back to ACIR
for re- assessment . The department have filed appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication,

16.1.14 The DCIR has concluded the assessment and proceeding through its order u/s | | (2) for the period from July 2016
to December 2016 has charged sales tax amounting RS 6,090,000. The company aggrieved by the order filed
appeal before CIR appeals who, through order 09/2020 dated 29/10/2020 remanded the case back to ACIR for re-
assessment. The department have filed appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication.

16.1.15 During the year ended 3| December 2018, Assistant Commissioner Infand Revenue (ACIR) through its order
dated 23 October 2018, raised a sales tax demand for the period from July 2016 to June 2017, under section | 1(2)
and | 1(3) of Sales Tax Act, 1990, amounting to Rs. |45.57 milllon along with penalty of Rs. 7.28 million against
Inadmissible adjustment of Input tax on goods not related to taxable supplies, non-realization of sales tax on
disposal of fixed assets and non-withholding of sales tax from payment made against advertisement. The Company
filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) and demand was reduced to |13m,
aggreived by the order, company filled an appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication.

16.1.16 During the year ended 3| Decamber 2018, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued a show cause
notice, dated 09 November 2018, against inadmissible adjustment of input tax on goods not related to taxable
supplies and non-withholding of sales tax from payment made against advertisement amounting to Rs. 399.60
million, Against the show cause notice, the ACIR raised a sales tax demand of Rs, 135.34 million alongwith default
surcharge and penalty. The Company filed an appeal with CIR appeals who decided the case in favor of the company
through order 10/2020 dated 29/10/2020 and annulled the ACIR order. Department is in process of filing an appeal
with ATIR.

Based on the apinion of the legal and tax advisors handling the above litigations, the management believes that the

Company has strong legal grounds against each case and that no financial liability is expected to accrue, Accordingly,
no provision has been made in these financlal statements,

162  Commitments
16.2.1 The Company has issued postdated cheques of Nil (2019: Rs. 18.82 million) in favour of custom
authorities for import of plant and machinery vide Serial No. 6, 8th Schedule of Sales Tax Act, 1990.
1622 Commitments, for capital expenditure, against irrevocable letters of credit outstanding at the year end
were for Rs. NIl (2019: Rs. 3.82 million).

16.2.3 Commitments, for purchase of raw / packing material, outstanding at the year end were for Rs. Nil (2019:

Rs. Nil).
2020 2019
I7  Property, plant and equipment Note Rupees Rupees
Operating fixed assets 17.) 7,326,713,116 7,864,982,570
Capital work-in-progress 172 223,379,724 241,053,620
7,550,092,840 8,106,036,190




i -

:

= -
E R
-~

§
:
3

:
i

50

ANNU
20




(SsL'svv'Ly) (€1v'ozs'v)
OLST06'¥98'L S16'%L8'659'T 960681 'pLL 1E9VET'06' | 0% LS8'¥IS 01 148 19€°508' | P6L'SH'STR'S 6107 quoeq | ¢

(ouo'secsy) (5E9°€s¥'L9)
¥O'610°2ZS 919064 81 USTOE9s OLL'ETS 0L 09960590/ oSTRVOE9! LE0'S16'509
(9L9°secty) (SE9'Esv'L9)
6E4'0L1'98 CLYERT LTI 10L'99T'SH YISO LICESH'SIT Y0O'I9E°¥E EVS'SHS'BIT sapegap
180°6SL'SIE EIV0IT 1 I#1°6E¥'SE Uiy PV 69C°LSE . YoV 695 LSE Amupyew pue
YIS680°81 | 0€L'965°S oELveSST - YST98Y'ECI YST'989'EE] - g - Rupeng
NeISE pasea)
(620'011's) BLL'99y'l)
9IS E96'THE'L SETYBE'SLF'T $15'088'LL9 116092608 | ST LHERIV'6 EI9'EEE'LEY') 1940656178
(620’0119 BL'yw' D)
TLUVEL L18'T08'9L S96'LLLY 19698162 6ES'6LTTS BESVIEY 6LL'18E°SS SIPRPA
WE'STE 1€ ey 19L'WHT 195°258°€ | 899’ LIS 19885€°1 | LT8'E99'9E BIXY PUR BITALNY
929'15798 159" 16€°9€ ¥61'059'6 159" 19L8L Y TNV 085'59€'CE 69'LST 16 wewdinb3 |) pue WO
1%0'ETET) IZS'011I'ET 685°LT5'9 T06'T85°¥ T95'EEH'SE . T95'EEH ST Doy
S10THIETI S6¥'L6T91 SL91'6 9EL'991'L PIS6ENSEI SO9'BELY ) 606'00L'VT Wadinba SnIom 0
‘8960 8E1'05K'E ovL'L08') WE'TY SI'BIPEL 0M0'S9T’ 'CSSTL  uopmgesiy sl pue padepy
so'ev1’D) (1LL'ev0'18)
091 TLS'CTV'S 11¥086'620'T BOY'SSE'LYS  ORL1L1'6ES') 145°T05'508'L 9BETILTST) 956'668'18T'9 Admunge pue ey
IET°11¥'506 YEL'ESO'SST BIHLEYES 906'S 15591 SI6 VI Y| £19'905°612 THE'ISEPre  Pum| proysauy uo Buppng
SLEEPSIU - - - SLEEVSIU - SLE'EYSITL pum ploqaasy
DATTT PILMO
- $2CTy -
6100 6102 L3 610T
ot ok o soy
vomwpaidep  equiseq B i :\l.i famei 1o oo (suoormp) s
vogenaudap omp vogepaudep ponjesas T pravienas
INEA yoog porEmLNI Yy uoawaideq pomPwn MY | 1807 /100
6107




ANNUAL
2020

17,13 Disposal of eparating assets

Amount Meode of Relationship With Particulars of

Partiodars of assets Cost NBv Recsived Gain Dwposal Company purchaser
---------------- Rapoms -~ cvvvvcncenes
Plant and machinery
Criter 109,000 149,366 153,000 34634 nsurance Clam Third party sibe U Ganersl Ingurance
Yuhicles
Qemead
Toyota Fortuner 3,500,000 1248556 4,767,000 1518444 Market Viue Third party ssin Zahid jawed Bust
Laasnd
Mehran 0).000 a6 501,000 MM surance Qam Third party sse £ F U General Imurance
Toyyoa Cerola | 460,500 wr s 1,559,091 LIS1.340  Aucton Third party sale Mubarmvwad Abram
Toyyota Corola | 660,500 97,751 1,554,545 LISET™M  Aucten Third party ssin Mubarrvmad Abram
Toyyota Corols | 460,500 3n,100 33100 - Company Polcy Ergloyes Mubarremad Roces
Toyosas Altis | 4 1,990,500 39,100 196, 100 - Camgpany Polcy Erployes Frax shrad Abbaai
Mehran ) 000 115,460 136,000 115 Company Pelcy Erployes Karamat Ak
Mehran 48).000 164,985 559,09 PLI06  Auction Third party sale Muharmmad Akram
Mehvan 483,000 166,985 536,000 9015 Aucten Third party sile Mubarremad Sl Khar
Meh-an £83,000 166,585 518,000 BIPIS  Austion Third party safe Mubarrvmad Sidal Khas
Mabran 483,000 166,585 559,09 II0E  Auction Third party ssle Mubarmymad Alram
Mehran 48) 000 138 600 136,600 - Company Polcy Evpioyes Muharmymad Kamean
Mehran 4),000 126,400 136,600 - Campany Pobcy Frrployes Mabk Tappab gutear
Mehran 481,020 166,595 €80,000 SI00IS  Auvction Third party sale Abu Balar Zahid
Metan 683,000 166,585 529,000 2015 Auetion Third party se Mubarnsad 3dal Khar
Cuta 1,039,000 245,556 551,702 306,146 Auction Third party sia Abubakear Zated
Cidnn 1 039,000 254,023 850,000 SS9TT  Auctien Third party sin Rac Atsf Man=an
Cutan | 0% 000 245 556 1,065,000 019484 Aucton Third party s Muharmmmad Akt
Toyyota Corola | 460,500 1,00 pRPNL) . Campany Policy Employes Rizwan Uitah Khan
Toyyota Cerola | 562,500 132,100 332,100 . Campany Pelcy Employes Marsoor Ahmad khan
Toyyots Corola | 662,500 312,100 331100 - Campany Policy Empiloyee Achar Mchudde
Toyyota Corola. | 460,500 405572 1 609,09\ 1203119 Auction Third party siin Mubarmrmad Akram
Corrola Al 1.6 1,990,500 19,100 398, |00 - Campany Polcy Employes Astigue Ur Rebman
Corrola Alis | 4 1,990,500 1,100 98, 100 - Campany Polcy Frrgioyes Hammad Khabd Toor
Toyom Corolla | 562,000 102,400 31,40 - Campany Policy Emgioyes Mubarvmad Arshad
Toyyota Corola XA 1,660,500 40,635 1,795,455 1364820  Aucton Third party ssin Mubarrvmad Aram
Toyyota Corols X0 | 662,000 431 025 1,690,909 1LI59864  Auction Third party siin Karrran Alvned Rana
Toyyota Carola X0 | 443,000 4197957 1,765,000 LM524)  Acction Third party sle Mubarrrmad Shug Khan Bhatty
Mebran 08, 000 LK H) 540,000 BULIAT  Austion Third party sim Munaremad Btal Khar
A 015,500 502,480 2,195,455 LML Aucton Third party sale Mubarmymad Shuja Khan Bhatn
Aus 2015500 514924 2,245,000 1730076  Aucson Third party sfe Naveod Anrmad
Toypots Aka 1,990,500 518,064 £01,404 83340  Company Policy Es-Empoyes Syeda Rubad Zahra Gardexi
Toyyota Corrola | 460,500 440,22 | 660,000 L9878  Auction Third party sin Mubarrvmad Alesl
Toyoyom Aks 1,990,500 54443 2,075,000 1530357  Auston Third party sim Syed A Ivan
Topyota X1 | 44),000 474,904 1,506,364 10601460  Auction Third party sbe Syed Hasn hassar Maider Tad
Mehran 488 000 198 64 £80.000 LM  Aucton Third party ssfe Adu Bakar Zahd
Suzcds Culns 1,099,000 07074 1,040,000 TIL9RE  Auctien Third party ssle Mubarremad Nooh Ul Hag
A | 1,990,500 5632687 2,200,000 1436713 Auction Thrd party sn Iman Magesed
Mahean 708,000 204,645 £50,000 #5355  Auctien Therd party sée Abu Buikar Zahvd
Mehran /08,050 204,444 A5 455 440010  Aucton Third party sie Mubaremad Akram
Mehran 108,000 204,645 504.000 MIN  Auction Third party saie Muharmvmad Akl
Mehran 703,000 210,161 613,636 MAATS  Auction Third party sele Mubarrvmad Akram
Mehean 703,000 210,161 £80,000 469839  Aucten Third party sn Abu Bukar Zabd
Mehran 708,000 3340 562,000 338660  Auction Third party ssn Mubarrvmad Sisl Khan
Mebran To8 000 23,340 salL8e 3BAAM  Aucten Third party sin Mubarmemad Akram
Mehran 708,020 .40 «Qran «0  Aucton Third party saie Mubarmmad Akram
Mehran 69075 41,533 720,000 WIAGT  Auction Third party sale Abu Bakar Zahd
Mehan 762,000 388,056 780,000 9199 Auction Third pary sis A Baker Zaid
Mehran 73,000 262,074 750,000 BT Auction Third party sile Joverta Zahd
Mehran 732,000 man 760,000 8887  Aucton Third party sie Aby Balear Zahid
Mehran 32,000 van “h 2 WIS Aucten Third party saim Asy Raker Zahid
Mehran 40,000 450,10 90 000 S8  Auction Third party ssie Javerta Zahid
Metvan 840,000 466,667 50,000 38333 Aucson Third party sin Abu Bakar Zahid
Honds Civie 2,637,000 WTAI2 87,412 - Company Pelicy Ex-Empoyee Rigwan Rafi
Virtous msets having net book value up to R
— 1295433 143,084 1301 402 Lisa3m

-
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The Company’s land, bulldings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric and gas installations, milk churns
and other work equipment are measured using revaluation model. Had these revaluations not been carried
out, the carrying amount of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric and gas
Installations and other work equipment would have been as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Freehold land 73,365,999 73,365,999
Buildings on frechold land 787,314,842 828,752,465
Plant and machinery including milk churns 4,349,650,545 4,578,579,521
Electric and gas Installations 7,530,006 8,366,673
Orther works equipment 110,216,254 122,462,504

5328077646 5611527162

The latest revaluation was carried on at 30 june 2017 by K.G. Traders (Private) Limited. As per the revaluation
report, forced sale value of freehold land and buildings on free hold land was Rs. 613.28 million and Rs. 652.18
million respectively and forced sales value of plant and machinery, milk churns, electric and gas installations and
other works equipment was Rs. 3,5 12.95 million.

The manufacturing facility of the Company is located at Sargodha Road, Bhalwal, District Sargodha. Total
owned areais | 20 kanals and 5 marlas and covered area of building is | 72,550 square feet.

As of 0| October 2020, the Company has revised its estimate of the method of depreciation of building and
plant and machinery from reducing balance method to straight line method respectively by depreciating its net
book value over its remaining useful life. This change in estimate of method of depreciation of building and plant
and machinery has been applied praspectively as required under IAS-8 'Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors. Had the change of depreciation method not been revised, the depreciation
charge for the current year and for financial years 2020 to 2025 would have been higher by Rs. 62.79 million, Rs.
235.78 million, Rs. 175.75 million, Rs. 121.72 millon, Rs. 73.09 million and Rs. 29.32 respectively.

The depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees

Cost of sales 28 605,406,962 665,787,355
Marketing and distribution expenses 29 24,364,469 44,292,803
Administrative expenses 30 70,155,158 64,102,938

699,926,589 774,183,096
Capital work-in-progress
Plant and machinery 223,379,724 210,486,091
Building - 349,204
Leased vehicles - 2,835,000
Advances to suppliers - considered good - 27,383,325

223,379,724 241,053
Intangible assets
Intangible assets 18,1 19,183,317 38,223,738
Capital work-in-progress 18.3 1,169,826 1,169,826

20,353,143 39,393,564

n A
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Note 2020 2019
19 Deferred taxation - net Ruposs Rupess
The deferred tax comprises of the following:
Deductible temporary differences:
- unused tax losses 19.1 789,405,453 834,573,351
- unused tax credit - 23,474,943
- minimum tax 14,316,124 -
- provisions 99,206,787 47,266,219
902,928,364 905,314,513
Less: Taxable temporary differences:
- accelerated tax depreciation allowances net of lease liability 661,690,694 637,272,659
- surplus on revakuation of property, plant and equipment 241,237,670 268,041,854
902,928,364 905314513

Deferred taxation - nat 192

19.1 The aggregate unused tax losses and tax credits avallable to the Company for set off against future taxable
profit as at 31 December 2020 amount to Rs. 18,080.92 million (2019: Rs. 14, 145.99 million) and Rs. 14.32
milllion (Rs. 23.48 million) respectively. Of these, deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and minimum tax
cradits amounting to Rs. 2,722.09 (2019: Rs. 2,877 .84 million) and Rs. 14.32 million (2019: 23.48 million)

respectively have been recognized.
Expiry of tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized is as follows:
2020 2019

Tax year Rupees Rupees

2024 1,527,803 944 |, 431,625,453

2025 2,671,290,831 2,671,290831

2026 3,487,579,099 3.487,579.099

2027 3,408,831,285 -

No expiry (depreciation loss) 4.263,325,750 3,677,660,004

192 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
2020
= Reversal from / (charge to)
Opening Profit or loss Equity Closing
Deferredtaation = = sessesssccsses Rupees - --~--vvreveranas
Deductible / (taxable) temporary differance
Unused tax losses 834,573,351 45,167,898 - 789,405,453
Unused tax credit 23,474,543 213,474,943 - &
Minierum Tax Ujs 113 . (14,316,124) . 14,316,124
Provisions 47,266,219 (51,940,568) - 99,206,787
Accelerated tax depreciation allowances (637,272,659) 24,418,035 - (661,690,694)
Surplus on revalustion of property, .
plant and equpment (268,041,854) (26,804, 184) (241,237 ,670)




2019
Reversal from / (charge to)
Opening Profit o loss Equity Closing
.............. m......-...--...--
Deductible / (taxable) temporary difference
Unused tax losses 2,069.440000 || (1,234,866,649) . 834,573,351
Unused tax credit 159,425,493 (135,950,550) - 23474943
Provisions 32518433 14,747 786 47,266,219
Accelerated tax depreciaton alowances (425,030,349) (212,242.310) - (637.272,659)
Surphus on revaluation of property.
plant and equipment (264.816,197) 32,402,955 (35.628.612) (268,041,854)
1,571,537,380 (1,535,908,768) (35,628.612)
Note 2020 2019
20  Stores, spares and loose tools Rupees Rupees
Stores 10,570,843 96,127,177
Spares 189,185,495 149,530,726
Loose tools - 500,822
199,756,338 246,158,725
Less: provision for obsolescence 20.1 (8,612,801) (8,612,801)
191,143,537 237,545,924
20.1 Movement in provision for obsolescence
Balance as at 01 January 8,612,801 3,356,101
Provision for the year 2 - 5,256,700
Balance as at 3| December 8,612,801 8,612,801
21 Stock-in-trade
Raw and packing material
- In hand 467,962,968 1.063,586,228
- In transit 14,841,894 5430617
482,804,862 1,069,016,845
Work-in-process 173,006,590 146,456,393
Finished goods 156,040,982 283,032,995
811,852,434 1,498,506,233
Less: Stocks written off during the year n (207,342,928) -
Less: Provision for obsolescence 211 (60,526,693) (55,283,299)
212 543,982,813 1,443,222, 934
21.1 Movement in provision for obsolescence
Balance as at 01 January 55,283,299 7,831,398
Provision for the year n 34,947,112 55,283,299
Written off during the year (29,703,718) (7,831,398)
Balance as at 3| December 60,526,693 55,283,299
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21.2 The amount charged to the statement of profit or loss on account of write down of finished goods and
work-in-process to net realizable value amounts to Rs. 2.2 million (2019: Rs. 32 million).

2020 2019
22  Trade debts Note Rupees Rupees
Unsecured
- Considered good 350,850,105 181,171,112
- Considered doubtful 22,455914 22455914
Loss allowance against trade debts 221 (22,455,914) (22,455,914)
350,850,105 181,171,112
22.1  Loss allowance against trade debts
Loss allowance as at 01 January 22455914 14,777,210
Loss allowance for the year - 7,678,704
Loss allowance as at 31 December 22,455,914 22455914
23  Loan and advances - unsecured
Due from employees - Considered good 8,543,591 5311656
Advances to suppliers - Considered good 23.1 142,656,099 59,334,195
151,199,690 64,645,851

23.1  These are interest free in the ordinary course of business.

232  No loan or advance has been given to Chief Executive or any other Director of the Company.

2020 2019

24 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Rupees Rupees
Security deposits 54,393,092 35,708,602
Prepayments 12,330,886 11,626,205
Other receivables 9,446,496 186,621,936
76,170,474 233,956,743

25 Due from associated undertakings - unsecured

Noon International (Private) Limited 39,247 39,247
Fauji Cereals 2,839,293 -
2,878,540 39,247
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25.1 Maximum outstanding balance with reference to month end balances:

In the In the 2020 2019

month of month of Rupees Rupees

Fauji Cereals December 2020 - 2,839,293 .
Noon International

(Private) Limited December 2020 December 2019 39,247 39,247

25.2 Due from associate - Noon International (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 39,247 is outstanding for more
than six months.

25.3 These are interest free in the normal coursa of business on account of purchase of goods or services.

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents Note Rupees Rupees
Cash-in-hand 95,940 44,425

Cash at banks on:

- Current accounts 106,678,949 110,343,730
- Saving accounts 26.1 741,891,849 3,524,754
- Dividend accounts 221,491 221,450
262 848,792,289 114,089,974
Term Deposit Receipt (TDR) 263 40,000,000 -
888,888,229 114,134,399

26.1 This carries profit at the rates ranging from 49 to 696 (2019: 5% to 9.5%) per annum.
26.2 This includes amount of Rs. 804,70 million (2019: Rs. Nil) at Askari Bank Limited, a related party.

26.3 This represents TDR having maturity of one month. It carries mark-up at the rate of 5% per annum.

2020 2019
Revenue from contracts with customers - net Rupees Rupees
Gross sales 8,428,955,1 14 6,537,109,723
Lesss  Sales tax (519418,737) (255,005,789)
Trade discounts (536,374,310) (537,231,606)

(1,055,793,047)  (792,237.395)
7,373,162,067  5,744,872,328

27.1 Revenue from contracts with customers relates to local (Pakistan) market and represents sale of dairy and
allied products. Timing of revenue recognition is at point of time.




Cost of Sales

Raw materials consumed
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Freight and forwarding
Power and fuel

Packing materials consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Repair and maintenance
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Rent, rates and taxes
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery

Legal and professional charges

Adjustment of work-in-process
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Adjustment of finished goods
Opening stock
Closing stock

Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:

Provident fund

Long term accumulated compensated absences

Gratulty

17.0.7

21

21

— |
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In additbon, salaries, wages and other benefits relating to milk procurement department
million (2019: Rs. 104.69 million) and provident fund amounts to Rs. 1.05 million (2019: Rs. 2.07 million).

fauji foods
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
3,876,828,076 3,161,370,540
191,317,516 203,647 819
116,081,921 136,250,294
229,183,058 294,449,733
1,859,712,643 1,765,314,405
129,745,885 126,444,080
183,644,708 170,144,056
605,406,962 665,787,355
2,531,983 2,342 982
5,224,792 12,916,483
222,614 359,699
1,216,631 13,325,471
8,918,691 9,606,851
42,777 301,21
7,210,458,197 6,564,970,979
146,456,393 37,295,000
(173,006,590) (146,456,393)
(26,550,197) (109,161,393)
7,183,908,000 6,455,809,586
283,032,995 250,922,457
(156,040,982) (283,032,995)
126,992,013 (32,110,538)
7,310,900,013 6,423,699,048
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
9,409,798 9,622,386
2,201,206 6,278,359
—34040888 2121829
15,015,892 18,022 574

amounts to Rs, 94.22

n A




29 Marketing and distribution expenses Note

Dapreciation on proparty, plant and equipment  17.1.7
Communication, establishment and others

29.1  Salaries, wages and other benefits inchude following in respect of employee benefits:

Note

Provident fund
Long term accumulated compensated absences
Gratuity

Administrative expenses
Salaries, wages and other benefits 30,1

Directors’ meeting fee 37

30.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits inchude following in respect of employee benefits:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
140,309,229 139,648,577
170,493,913 246,520,824
5,515,548 10,485915
1.715417 7,755,702
8,504,855 22,526,478
22,165,665 40,834,048
465,283,240 780,492,580
2073912 1,852,948
24,364,469 44,292,803
1,716,762 14,194832
854,143.010 1,309,604,707
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
7,158,978 8,582,209
2,201,206 6,030,359
3,404,888 1,721,829
12,765,072 16,334,397
172,817,965 211,748,181
2,249,591 12,442,001
9,065,000 10,202,520
1979417 27,045,042
1,997,568 2,877,284
18,952,043 8,727 582
2,103,267 3,110,105
7,625,226 12,856,999
2,913,995 1,000,846
2,487,958 18,334,428
10,721,294 13,252,504
736,999 2,271,998
23,769,461 17,656,797
- 793,450
1,425,000 1,365,000
4,983,720 5,626,608
70,155,158 64,102,938
19,040,421 18,910,846
2,408,129 5,943,806
355.432.212 438,268,935

— |



£

fauji foods
2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Provident fund 4,942,355 5,909,720
Long term accumulated compensated absences 1,100,600 3,375,175
Gratuity 1,702,444 1,460,915

1,745.399 10745810
30.2  Legal and professional charges
The charges for professional services include the following

in respect of auditors’ services for:
- Statutory audit fee 1,100,000 1,100,000
- Half yearty review 125,000 125,000
- Certification charges 130,000 60,000
- Out-of-pocket expenses 70,000 80,000
— 1425000 365,000
Other income Note
Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts / TDRs 26.1 44,490,685 56,198,286
Income from non-financial assets
Sale of scrap 21,973,316 9,447 454
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  17.1.2 32240063 32,666,185
870406 98311525
Other expenses
Exchange loss 628,830 82,824,900
Consultancy fee - 68,119,660
Provision for obsolete stocks and stores 21.) 34,947,112 60,539,999
Stock written off 21 207,342,928 -
Others - 7310310
—2ATII6ET0 28754863
Finance cost
Istamic mode of financing
- Short term borrowings 203,935,674 150,369,539
Interest / mark-up on interest / mark-up based loans
- Long term finance 490,572,682 586,629613
- Short term borrowings 633,176,978 740,791,333
- Loan from Parent Company 293,073,510 156,279,932
- Lease liabilities 42,546,830 58,604,433
Bank charges, feas and commission 88,961,733 549|846

_LTSL267407 696166696



2020 2019
34 Taxation e Rupees Rupees
Current:
- For the year 34.1 14,316,124
14,316,124 -
Deferred:
- For the year - 1, 777,100,482
- Prior year - (241,191.714)
- 1,535,908,768
34.1 In view of minimum taxation, the reconcillation of accounting profit with tax charge is not considered
meaningful and hence not presented.
35 Loss per share 2020 2019
Loss par share - basic and diluted
Loss for the year Rupees 111 A5.788,937.474)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Restated
In issue during the year Number 661,358,296 538975336
Restated
Loss per share - basic and diluted Rupees (4.62) (l0.74)
2020 2019
36 Cash and cash equivalents Note Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank balances 26 888,888,229 114,134,399
Running finance balances 121 (1,646,167,111) (5.141,946,098)

(757,278,882)  (5,027,811,699)

37 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amount charged In the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain
benefits, to Chief Executive, directors and executives of the Company s as follows:

Chief Executive Non Executive Directors Executives
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
-Rupees-
Managerial remuneration 7,200,000 . - . 71,385910 77,538,555
Meeting fee - . 9,065,000 10,182,000 - -
Consultancy fee - - - 2,624,436 - .
Provident fund 720,000 - - 6,739,941 7343975
House rent 3,240,000 . - 61,007,317 69,784,700
Utilities 720,000 . - 7,138,590 7,753,856
Relocation allowance - - - 427,246 1,800,858
Others __1.200,000 - - . 5,179,060 412,717
Dososeo 9065000 _ 11866 _ISLATHOM _1683%4s61

Number of persons ' I 8 13 n 41
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37.1 The Company also provides some of its executives with company maintained cars and other benefits in

accordance with the Company's policy.
Factory employces Total employees
2020 2019 2020 2019
38  Number of employees (Number of persons) (Number of persons)
Total number of employees as at 3| December 559 670 730 842
Average number of employees during the year g 993 804 'l!”
Capacity Production
39 Capacity and production 2020 2019 2020 2019
Liquid products - liters 221,920,000 227,760,000 61,144,281 60,873,948
Non - Liquid products - Kgs 6,743,375 6,743 375 1,940,207 1,651,307

The actual production Is according to market demand.
40 Related party transactions and balances

Refated parties comprise of parent company, assoclated companies, directors, entities with common directorship,
post employment plans and key management personnel, Balances are disclosed elsewhere in these financial
staterments, The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with refated parties. Significant
transactions with related parties are as follows:

Naume of the Company  Relutionship Nature of transactions .':_ .‘2’_
Aszacistad Undertakings
Fasfl Fartibner Parem Comaarny Salaries of ssconded smpioyess charged to reisted party - 14572337
S Qutn Limined $FV0L) (Sherehalding end TADA, repair and mamtenance and rent expenss charged
commen divectarship) by relatad party 720,14 12,360,800
Expense of [T factines charged by related party 6.000.000 .
Experse dorne by the Company on betalf of related party - EAFINE )
Loan recetved 5.925,000,000 2,430,000,000
Finance cost charged by rebed party WILTASI0 156299
Finance cest paid o relaiad party . 17416500
Sharw isssance agalrat debt and acoved markep 1,748,863,714 -
Fasfl Foundation Associated Undertaking  Management shared services charged by related party 1,249,999
(Sharehaldng end
commen dvectorsie) TA/DA snd bosrding axpames charged by relxted party 84,530 -
Askar Bank Lirstad Associated Undermiing  Finance cost charged by celated party 89415480  88,157406
{Camman diractorshe) Ireermss ncome on @wing accounts .msn 13,7% %46
Unilves expense paid on benall of the related party . 1,741 490
Ward Howell lesrmationsl  Agsociated Undermabking  Head Humter fee of CEO appolsment 1472000 -

(Comman directorship)
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Name of the Comeary Retatansmp Naturs of transactions X .2 —
FFSL Power Company Umked  Amocisted Undertaking Purchase of coal AL
{Commen divectorshep)
Faup Cormals Asscoated Unsertabng Purthase ol Goods 1,934,400
{Cammzn drecrarshe) Salary of executive charged to the related party 2,224,800
Trawwing expense charged to the relvtnd party 167,504

Head Hunter fee of apparnment charged to related party 444,960 -

Fauj Security Services Associated Undertaking Expenses paid aguinst secunily services 1,890 400 3,183,592

(Potvutc) Liminad (Commen directorship)

Noon Scger Mity Associated Underabing  Purchase of white sugar 52,462,600 21,224,500
(Catmmen directorshipy)

Employes’s Providert Fund Tust  pogt emplopee benefit plan  Contribution for the yesr 50341.862 53,657 404

M. Sabman Huyss Noen Non-Executive Direcinr~ Consultancy fee expense . 2624,436

Drecton Meeting fee 9,045,000 10,182,000

oy Managemaent Persornel Ramurerstion and berefts ANy Se2410

40.1 Associated companies/ related parties percentage of shareholding has been disclosed innote 5.3.
41 Financial risk management

".l

Financdial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate risk,
price risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Company's financial performance,

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies,

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk imits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,
alms to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
refation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by
Internal Audit. internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Commiittee.

The Company’s exposure to financial risk, the way these risks affects the financial position and
performance and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:




4111 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Company’s income or value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market

risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while

optimizing return,

41.1.1.1 Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk Is the risk that value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes In foreign
exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions

with foreign buyers and suppliers.

The Company is exposed to exchange risk arising from currency exposures mainly with respect to the Euro
and US Dollar on import of raw material, packing material and stores and spares. Currently, the Company's
foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to the foreign entities. The Company's is
not exposed to foreign exchange risk as at 31 December 2020 as it has no financial instruments denominated in

foreign currency.

41.1.1.2 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all

£
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similar financial instruments traded In the market. The Company is not exposed to any significant price risk.

41.1.1.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. Sensitivity to Interest rate risk arises from mismatch of

financial assets and Kabilities that mature or reprice in a given period.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises from long term finances, lease finances and short tarm finances.

Borrowings obtained at variable rates exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as

follows:
2020 2019 2020 2019

Financialassets @ ~"""""" Effective rate - - -~~~ -~ Rupees Rupees
Fixed rate instruments
Saving accounts 4% to 6% 4% t0 9.5% 741,891,849 3,524,754
Term Deposit Receipt 5% - 40,000,000 -
Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments
Lease labilities 7.56% to 14.39%  10.24% to 14.39% 254,729,697 392831171
Long term finances 8.40% to 14.40%  9.85% to | | 44% 6,167,582,315 4.316,666,667
Short term borrowings 8.0% to 14.60% 11.05% to 20.51% 1,875,297,551 6,691,944,126
Loan from Parent Company 8.5% to 14.5% 12619 to 15.42% 5,925,000,000 2,630,000,000

Total exposure

AT s _TA0 I
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fioced rate financial assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At 3| December 2020, if interest rate on variable rate financial liabilities has been 196 higher / lower with all
other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year would have been Rs. 142,23 million (2019:Rs. 119.17
million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on variable rate financial liabilities.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a financial loss if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to
discharge its contractual obligation. The Company's credit risk arises from trade debts, other receivables, and
balances with banks. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk as its exposure is spread overa
large number of counter parties.

41.1.2.1 Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date was:

Financial assets at amortized cost Rupees Rupees
Security deposits 60,999,214 42314724
Trade debes 350,850,105 181,171,112
Due from employees 8,543,591 5311656
Due from related parties 2,878,540 39247
Other receivables 9,446,496 186,621,936
Bank balances 848,792,289 114,089,974
Term Deposit Receipt 40,000,000 .

1,321,510,235 529,548,649

41.1.2.2 Credit quality and impairment

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to
historical information about counterparty default rates. All counterparties, with the excaption of customers and
utility Companies, have external credit ratings determined by various credit rating agencies. Credit quality of
customers is assessed by reference to historical defaults rates and present ages.

Counter parties with external credit ratings - Bank balances

These include banking companies and financial institutions, which are counterparties to bank balances. Credit
risk is considered minimal as these counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various
credit rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering
their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their
obligations to the Company. Following are the credit ratings of counterparties with external credit ratings:
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Rating 2020 2019
Institutions Short Agency Rupees Rupoes
Term ferm
Bank balances
National Bank Of Pakistan  AAA  Al+ PACRA 4,408,950 40,129,326
United Bank Limited AMA  Al4 JCRVIS 294,720 294,720
Askari Bank Limited A+ Al+ PACRA 754,072,720 808,388
JS Bank AA- Al+ PACRA . 84,047
Bank Alfaiah Limited M+ Al+ PACRA 5,738 5,738
MCB Bank Limited AMA  Al+ PACRA 82,412,515 67,616,337
Habib Bank Limitad AA AL+ JCRVIS 1,769,759 1,630,563
Faysal Bank Limited AA Al+ PACRA 3,674,216 759,213
Bank Isami Pakistan A+ Al PACRA 284,999 284,999
Bank Al-Habib Limvted AA+ Al+ PACRA 8,067 1,262,958
Soneri Bank Limited AA- Al+ PACRA . 103,461
Dubai istamic Bank AA Al + JCRVIS 1,860,605 1,120,224
—TI2209 114,009,974
Security deposits
Askari Bank Limited M+ Al+ PACRA 10,500,000 10,500,000
Bank Isiami Pakistan A+ Al PACRA 3,500,000 3,500,000
MCB Bank Limited AMA  Al+ PACRA . 1,000,000
Soneri Bank Limited AA- Al+ PACRA . .
14,000,000 15,000,000

Counter parties without external credit ratings - Trade debts

These mainly include customers which are counter parties to trade debts. As explained in note 3.5, the Company
applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Management uses an allowance matrix to base the calculation of ECL of trade receivables from individual customars.
Loss rates are calculated using a 'role rate’ method based on the probability of receivable progressing through
successive stages of delinquency to write-off. The analysis of ages of trade debts and loss allowance using the
aforementioned approach asat 3| December 2020 (on adoption of IFRS 9) was determined as follows:

2020 2019
The aging of trade debts at the reporting date was: Rupees Rupees
| to 90 days 351,243,058 167,390,684
91 to 180 days 95,459 12,910,528
18] to 365 days 46,871 634,378
Above 365 days 21,920,631 22,691 436
Less: Loss allowance on trade debts (22,455,914) (22,455,914)

350,850,105 181,171,112
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Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or Industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company's total credit
exposure. The Company's portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and all other transactions are
entered into with credit-worthy counterparties there-by mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

4113  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities, that are settled by delivering cash or other financial asset as they fall due. The Company's
approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities. The Company finances its
operations through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate mix between
various sources of finance to minimize risk. As explined in note |.2, the Company has continously been
supported by sponsors and providers for finance for efficent working capital management and for meeting its
contractual obligations. The Company’s finance department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping
regular committed credit lines avallable.

The mble below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Carrying Contractual Less than Between
amount cash flows | yoar | to § years
At3 I December 2020 33 ccccicccccnncccnnnnnnn RuUpeas - «ccccvcvscnnsnnnnnns
Non derivative financial liabilities
Lease kabilities 254,729,697 317,755,521 93,334,587 224,420,934
Long term finances 6,167,582,315 12,523,230, 140 442,751,686 12,080,478,454
Trade and other payables 741,936,120 741,936,120 741,936,120 -
Accrued finance cost 533,632,385 533,632,385 533,632,385 -
Short term borrowings 1,875,297,551 1,875,297,551 1,875,297,551 -
Loan from Parent Company 5.925,000,000 5,925,000,000 5,925,000,000 .
15498178068 31916851717 __9,611,95239 _133048%5,388
Carrying Contractual Less than Between
amount cash flows | year | to 5 years
At3| December 2019 === o ceccieiccccccccncnnan Rupees--cvcmcernnnnnnnnnans
Non derivative financial llabilities
Lease liabilities 392.831,171 501,366,705 186,295,838 315,070,867
Long term finances 4.316,666,667 5,032,162,384 1,981,561379 3,050,601,005
Trade and other payables 1,048,389 567 1,048,389,567 1,048,389,567 -
Accrued finance cost 554,807,673 554,807,673 554,807,673 .
Short term borrowings 6,691,944, 126 6,691,944,126 6,691,944,126 -

Loan from Paren Company ____ 2630000000 2630000000 __ 2,630,000,000 -
15,634639.204 16456670455 13,092.998.583 _ 3.365.671.872
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The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest /
mark-up rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of interest / mark-up have been disclosed in the
respective notes to these financial statements.

412 Fairvalue of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without any
intantion or requiremant to curtall matarially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse
terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listad equity shares are based on the
quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market prices used for financial
assets held by the Company is current bid price.

A fimancial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, Industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurements’ requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date (level |),

= Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly (level 2).

- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (level 3).
41.2.1 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amounts and falr values of financial Instruments and non-financial
Instruments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

2020
Carrying ameunt Fair value

Firancial

oo Other financial

amertiaed Tabicies Total Laved | Lavel 2 Level 3

. sest
Ondalanceshestfioancial struments Note =000 cesssssssssssnnns L
31 Decamber 2020
Fimancial assets mot measured at fair valoe
Secunity ceponits 60,999,214 - 0,999,214 > é
Trude debs - considerad good n 350,850,105 - 350,850,105 - - -
Due from empioyees pi] 0,541,591 - 8,541,591
Dus from rebvied parties 5 2,478,540 - 2878540 . - a
Onher receivabes P2 9,446,496 - 9,446,496 . o -
Cash and bark balarces b 558,888,229 - 868,888,229 - -
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2020
Carrying ameunt Fair value
Firarcial
M s Other financal
arortsed Rabiisias Total Level | Level 2 Level 3
0
NotE = sessssssssssssass - ........................
Fimancial mbilitias not measusred at fir valus
Umass | bves ’ - 254,729,097 254,729,497 - - ®
Long term fnances 3 6,167,582,315 6,167,582,315 - - -
Trade and other payables 14 . 741,936,120 741,936,120 - .
$hort term borrowing "l - 1,875,297,551 1,875,297,55) - - -
Loan fram Purere Campany 13 - 5,925,000,000 5.925,000,000
Accrued firance cost 15 . SMMANIINS 533,632,305 . .
2019
Carrytng amousc Far vaue
Oxtver fnancal
Aty at
dhsisiteit Sablies Total Lowel | Leval 2 Lovel §
. Sost
Onlchmes thost Ganclelbntvarnanss Nata @ onrREEmmesamnanaaaansnaaasaaes
31 Decumiber 7019
Firancal assets not measured at far value
Security duposits 42314724 - 4231474 -
Trade debes n 18,071,012 . 18,071,002 .
Dun from employees n 5311 456 . 5311456
Due from relsied parties -3 9247 - 39247 - 3 a
Oxher receabies b 186,621,936 . 186,621,936 - . -
Cash and Bank balances » 114,134399 - 114,134,399 - - -
529,593,074 - £29.593,074 - - -
Financial labiities noe messured at fair vakee
Luase e btiam 9 - mamLm wmaLm - - -
Long term fnances B . 416666667 4316666567
Trade and ather paysbles 14 . 1,048.389.567 1,048,389 567 . -
Shaort term borrowing 7 - 6.691.5944,126 6,491 944,126 - -
Loan from parerc compary 13 2.430,000,000 2.630,000,000
Accrued firance cost 15 - 554,807,673 __ SSAMTAT - - -

41.2.2 Fair value versus carrying amounts

The Company has not disclosed the fair values of these financial assets and liabilities as these are for short term or
reprice over short term. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

413  Capital risk management

The Company’s prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concemn so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong

capital base to support the sustained development of its business,

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to It in the
light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
ad|ust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and / or issue new shares.

There was no change to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year. The Company is not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements, As at the reporting date, the Company has accumulated losses
of Rs. 15,188 million. These indicators and other matters as explained in note | .2 to the financial statements may

cause changes in the Company's approach to capital management.
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43 Date of authorization of lssue

These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on jJanuary 25,
2021.

44 Events after the reporting date
There are no subsequent events o<curring after reporting date.
45 Corresponding figures
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of

comparison and better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant reclassification has been
made except for the following:

ChiefExecutive  Director Chief Findncial Officer

k.




Wwiw jemaounii-pk

Key features:

62 Licensec Entities Verificasor

e Scam meter”

® Jamapunj gamas®

8 Tax credit valculaion®

& Company Vesificat on

= Inswrance 8 Investment Chec«list
»? FAGS Answered

&3 Online Quizzos

3 Javia e o ¥uoske
i L Bvrair reiwe
vLﬁ e

et Comemininn o Fakaten

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www. jamapuniji.pk

A Stock tradirg simulator
(baced cr live feed from PSX)

Ea Knowledue center

£ Risk profiler”

B Finencial ca culator

& Suoscription ta Alerts (event
nofifications. corporate and
reculatory ections)

@ Jamapunii application for
mokile device

L 5] v
Jemapuii ok @y aounji_px

Rl s we s o= e dowrssd e wow
A 106 denines



FAUJI FOODS LIMITED fauji foods
FORM OF PROXY
Registered Folio No./
€DC Account No.
1/We
(NAMe;
. (Adress

being a member of FAUN FOODS LIMITED , hereby appoint
(NAME)

of

(Address)
or failing him- s
. (Address)

(also being a member of the Company) as my/ our proxy to attend, act and vote for me/ us and on my/ our behatf,
at the 54" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Royal Swiss Hotel, Opposite Cargo Complex,
Allama Igbal International Airport, Lahore on Thursday, March 25, 2021 at 11:00 am. and at any adjournment
thereof

As witness my hand this. Day of 2021.

Revenue
Signature of Shareholder / Appointer i

Rs. 15/-

Witness 1 Witness 2

Signature Signature

Name Name

Address Address

eveo | [T T T T T T T T T lemecel [T T XTI R RTRT T 0

Note: Proxes, in order to be effective must reach the Company's Registered office not less than 48 hours
before the time for the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed. Proxies of
the Members through shall be accompanied with attested copies of their ONIC

SECP’s Circular No. 1 dated January 26th, 2000 (s on the reverse sice of the form,




The shares of a number of listed companies are now being maintained as *book entry Security” on the
Central Depository System (CDS) of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC). It has
come o the nolice of the Commission that there is some confusion about the authenticity of relevant
documents in the matter of beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of CDC for purposes of
attending the general meetings and for verification of instruments of proxies. The issue has been
examined and pending the further instruction to be issued in this regard, the following guideline for the
conveniencs of the listed companies and the beneficial owners are laid down:

Attending of meeting in person by account holders and / or sub-account holders and persons whose
securities are in group account and their registration detalls are uploaded to CDS:

The Company shall obtain list of benefictal owners from the COC as per Regulation # 12.3.5 of the CDC
Reguiations.

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are
in group account and thes regisiration detalls are up-loaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his
identity by showing his original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport al the
time of attending the mesting

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attormey with specimen signature
of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account hoider and / or the person whose securities are in
group account and their regsstration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy
farm as per requirement notified by the Company.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persans whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall
be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be fumished with the
proxy form.

The proxy shall produce hés ariginal CNIC ar original passport at the time of the meeting

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted alongwith proxy form fo the Company.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
State Life Building 7, Blue Area, islamabad

January 26, 2000
Circular No. 1 of 2000

The shares of a number of listed companies are now being maintained as “book entry Security” on the
Central Depository System (CDS) of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC). It has
come to the notice of the Commission that there is some confusion about the authenticity of relevant
documents in the matter of beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of CDC for purposes of
attending the general meetings and for verification of instruments of proxies The issue has been
examined and pending the further instruction 1o be issued in this regard, the following guideline for the
convenience of the listed companies and the beneficial owners are laxd down:

Attending of meeting In person by account holders and / or sub-account holders and persons whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded to CDS;

The Company shall obtain list of beneficial owners from the COC as per Regulation # 12.3.5 of the CDC
Reguiations.

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securilies are
In group account and their registration detalls are up-loaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his
identity by showing his original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the
time of attending the meeting

In case of corporale entity, the Board of Directors’ resclution / power of altorney with specmen signature
of the nominee shall be produced al the lime of the meeting.

M

In case of ndividual, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submil the proxy
farm as per requirement notified by the Company.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persans whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall
be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be fumished with the
proxy form,

The proxy shall produce his ariginal CNIC or original passport at the ime of the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attormey with specimen signature
shall be submitted alongwith praxy form to the Company.
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Head Office
42 CCA, Ex Park View,
DHA Phase - VIll, Lahore.
Tel: +92-42-37136310,
3713631517
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